
Town of Mount Desert 
Selectboard 

Agenda 
 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 4, 2024 

LOCATION CHANGE: Northeast Harbor Fire Department 
Conference Room (follow the signs when you enter the Meeting 
Room), Town Hall, Northeast Harbor; Meetings will continue to be 
offered via Zoom see final page for connection details. 
 

 
I. Call to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Public please hold comments until the Selectboard Chairman opens the agenda items 
for public comment.  When addressing the Board, state your FULL NAME (both in 
person and on Zoom).  It is suggested that you enter your full name as your ID on 
Zoom. 
 

II. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations 
A. Appointment of Jonathan Mickel as a Mechanical Equipment Operator II at the 

probationary rate of $24.93 per hour effective March 25th pending pre-employment 
physical and drug screen 

B. Appointment of Anne Dalton as Alternate to the Planning Board 
 

III. Consent Agenda (These items are considered routine, and therefore, may be passed by the Selectmen in one blanket motion.  
Board members may remove any item for discussion by requesting such action prior to consideration of that portion of the agenda.ee  
A. DRAFT of the Short-term Rental Ordinance 
B. Warrant Committee Minutes of February 6 and 13, 2024 

 
IV. Selectboard’s Reports 

 
V. Unfinished Business 

A. Non-profit Funding Request Recommendations 
B. Review and approve contract with EMR in Southwest Harbor for solid waste 

handling services 
 

VI. New Business 
A. MDES Budget Review 
B. Review and approve the rejection of bids for construction of sidewalks in Somesville 
C. Consider authorizing the Mount Desert Regional High School to grant scholarships 

of $350 from the Reynolds Trust Fund and $100 from the Stanley Trust Fund, as 
described in memo from Finance Director Mae Wyler 

 
VII. Other Business (Addendum items may be considered at the Selectboard’s discretion via majority vote to do so under Other 

Business or out of order.) 
A. Such other business as may be legally conducted 

 
 
 
 

 



Selectboard Meeting Agenda March 4, 2024 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

VIII. Treasurer’s Warrants 
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Warrant as shown below: 

Town Invoices AP#2454 09/09/2024 $354,152.56 
0Total   $354,152.56 

 
B. Approve Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants as shown 

below: 
State Fees & PR 
Benefits 

 
AP#2451 

 
02/21/2024 

 
$1,079.00 

 AP#2453 02/09/2024 $2,858.92 
Town Payroll PR#2421 03/01/2024 $160,399.32 
Total   $164,337.24 

 
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Town Voided Disbursements & School Board AP/Payroll 

Warrants as shown below: 
School Invoices   $0 
School Payroll PR#18 03/01/2024 $88,556.13 
Voided 
Disbursements 

   
$0 

Total   $88,556.13 
 

Grand Total   $607,045.93 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 

The next scheduled meeting is a Public Hearing on Ordinance Changes and Ordinances at 6:30 
p.m., Monday, March 11, 2024 at 6:30pm in the Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor. 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Monday, March 18, 2024 in the Meeting 
Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor. 
 

Town Clerk
Layout>formula> =SUM(ABOVE)



Selectboard Meeting Agenda March 4, 2024 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

The Town of Mount Desert is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  You can call in 
through any of the listed phone numbers or connect with a computer via the web link.  You will 
need to enter the meeting ID to get access to the meeting. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09 

 
Meeting ID: 248 566 175 

Password: 919872 
 

One tap mobile 
+13126266799,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (Chicago) 

+16468769923,,248566175#,,,,0#,,919872# US (New York) 
 

Dial by your location 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1 408 638 0968 US (San Jose) 
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

 
Zoom security now requires a password on all zoom meetings, so the recurring BS meeting now 
has a password. 
 
 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/248566175?pwd=RmozZjBOVWhtUTQrRXR5QzFEZEEyQT09




APPOINTMENTS 

RECOGNITIONS 

RESIGNATIONS 

  





 

MEMO 

Town of Mount Desert 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248 
Telephone 207-276-5744 Fax 207-276-4152 
www.mtdesert.org highway@mtdesert.org 

 To: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 
 From: Ben Jacobs, Public Works Superintendent 
 Re: MEO2 
  Date: February 26,2024  
 
 
 

We recently interviewed Jonathan Mickel who is interested in the vacant Mechanical Equipment 
Operator 2 position. Jonathan learned of the vacancy through advertising.  

 
I would like to recommend Jonathan be hired to fill the vacant full-time Mechanical Equipment 
Operator 2 position in the Public Works Department. This recommendation is based on the 
information provided by him when you and I interviewed him and a review of his application. He 
presently holds a Class B driver’s license. Jonathan said he would accept an offer of employment 
from us if one was offered to him and understands his appointment is contingent on being 
appointed by the Select board to the position, passing a D.O.T physical and a preemployment 
drug test. He understands the Town has an agreement with Teamsters Union Local 340. 

 
As such, I request Jonathan be appointed to the vacant full time Mechanical Equipment Operator 
2 effective on or before March 29, 2024, and, that he be appointed at the six probationary rate of 
pay of $24.93per hour, increasing to $26.24per hour after successfully completing the six-month 
probationary period. 

 
Thank you for your consideration of my recommendation. 

 
 
 
 
Cc. Zach Harris, Human Resources, Durlin Lunt, Town Manager. Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk 









CONSENT AGENDA 

  





From: noel@themussongroup.com
To: Durlin Lunt; Town Clerk; "Martha Dudman"; Geoffrey Wood
Cc: Kim Keene
Subject: Updated STRO
Date: Friday, March 1, 2024 9:28:39 AM
Attachments: STR Lincensing Ordinance -Discussion Draft 03012024.docx

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Folks,
 
Here is the final version.  I made a few edits based on Martha and Geoff’s comments.  Probably not
totally resolved by closer. Here are the changes:
 

1. Adjusted the language in VIII.E.2 to address Martha’s comment by changing may to will for
the board increasing the number of registrations.  I also added the last sentence to reiterate
that existing renewed licenses can stay.  

 
“In the event that more applications are received during the initial registration cycle (as
described in Section VIII.B above) than the allowable number of licenses, the Board of
Selectmen will increase the number of registrations issued, during the first registration cycle
only, by order. After the initial registration cycle, any duly licensed vacation rental may
continue operating as long as the license is current and renewed for the current calendar. If
the license is not renewed by the expiration date, then the license expires, and the unit then
loses the licensed protection provided by the registration.”

 
2. Modofied the process for what happens when there are more applications than available

licenses in VIII.E.3
 
“In the event that the Board of Selectmen receives more applications during any subsequent
registration cycle than the allowable number of licenses the town shall establish a wait list.
First priority shall be given to renewal applicants who submit a late renewal registration
application and shall be awarded on a space available basis based on the order in which the
renewal applications were received. First-time applications will be given second priority and
shall be awarded on a space available basis through a lottery process held by the Board of
Selectmen after timely renewal and late renewal applications have been approved.”

 
3. Changed VII.C and VIII.D to remove the registration period of Dec 1 – March 1 and just make it

so that licenses need to be renewed by March 1.  I think that will provide more opportunity
for someone to just renew when they can rather that have to plan for a certain time period.

 
4. Changed VIII.D to help address Geoff’s thought that there is some confusion that late

renewals and first-time renewals are the same.  I just added the with instead of as.  Not sure
that fully covers it, but it’s a start.

mailto:noel@themussongroup.com
mailto:manager@mtdesert.org
mailto:townclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:marthadudman@gmail.com
mailto:gwood@mtdesert.org
mailto:ceo@mtdesert.org



Town of Mount Desert

Short-Term/Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance



I. Purpose



The Town of Mount Desert recognizes that the ability for some year-round property owners to rent their residential dwelling unit and/or accessory dwelling unit as a short-term rental has contributed to their ability to remain as a year-round resident of the Town of Mount Desert. At the same time, there are legitimate concerns about the increase in number of vacation rentals and the undue impacts they can have on the year-round community and quality of life of the Town. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish a licensing program to enable the Town of Mount Desert to monitor, track, and regulate short-term rentals and vacation rentals in the Town and to institute performance standards intended to protect property owners, renters, and neighbors from potential negative impacts.



II. Applicability



A. This Ordinance only regulates business licensing of rental units [and does not constitute land use regulation.



B. Permitted short-term rentals and vacation rentals. Residential dwelling units may be used as short-term rentals or vacation rentals upon the issuance of a short-term rental or vacation rental license for the premises in accordance with the requirements of this ordinance.



C. Prohibited short-term rentals and vacation rentals. No person may offer for rent, operate, or otherwise use any residential dwelling unit in the Town of Mount Desert for short-term rentals or vacation rentals if such person has not secured and maintained a valid short-term rental or vacation rental license for the premises.



D. Lodging establishments exempt. The following lodging establishment uses are exempt from the licensing requirements and standards of this chapter: hotels, motels, bed-and-breakfasts, boarding houses, and inns.



E. A short-term rental or vacation rental does not include dwelling units that are rented for less than a total of 15 days in a calendar year or when relatives and friends stay for no monetary compensation.



III. Validity and Severability

If any provision of this chapter shall be found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of this chapter and, to that end, the provisions of this chapter are hereby declared severable.







IV. Definitions 



As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:



LICENSEE – The holder of a license to operate a short-term rental or vacation rental. 



OWNER — An individual person or persons or an entity that is the owner of record of real property as documented by deed or other document evidencing ownership recorded at the Hancock County Registry of Deeds or Registry of Probate.



RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT —This term shall have the meaning provided for that term in the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance, as may be amended from time to time.



SEASONAL VACATION RENTAL - The rental of a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, for occupancy for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes for fewer than twenty-eight (28) consecutive nights, for compensation, directly or indirectly. These structures are occupied only seasonally, typically have water service available only seasonally, do not contain insulation, or whole house heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, do not have a year-round subsurface wastewater disposal system installed, and the electric service is limited a 100 AMP system. Any heating appliance shall not have a fuel supply attached capable of heating the structure for more than 24 hours. For the purposes of this ordinance a seasonal vacation rental shall be treated the same as a short-term rental.



SHORT-TERM RENTAL — The rental of a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, for occupancy for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes for fewer than twenty-eight (28) consecutive nights, for compensation, directly or indirectly. A short-term rental is owned by the licensee as their primary residence. 



PRIMARY RESIDENCE – The dwelling unit a person or persons registers as their address for tax and government identification purposes, and where he or she resides for more than half of the year. 



VACATION RENTAL – A residential dwelling unit, or portion thereof, that is not a primary residence and is rented to guests for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes for fewer than twenty-eight (28) consecutive nights, for compensation, directly or indirectly, excluding motels, hotels, bed-and-breakfasts, boarding houses, and inns.



V. Requirements

 

A. [bookmark: _Hlk159589926][bookmark: _Hlk141963916]For the purposes of this ordinance a seasonal vacation rental shall be treated the same as a short-term rental. 



B. [bookmark: _Hlk141964038][bookmark: _Hlk142039285]No short-term rental or vacation rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated without the owner first obtaining a short-term rental or vacation rental license. No short-term rental or vacation rental license shall be issued to an owner unless and until the short-term rental or vacation rental is in compliance with the requirements and standards of this ordinance. 



C. A short-term rental or vacation rental license shall be valid only for the calendar year in which the license is issued (i.e. all short-term rental and vacation rental licenses expire on December 31 of each year).    



D. The applicant shall provide all the information requested on the short-term rental or vacation rental license application form(s).



E. A short-term rental or vacation rental may only be registered by the legal owner of the property or an authorized representative designated in writing.



F. Non-refundable fees for a short-term rental licenses or vacation rental licenses shall be as adopted by order of the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mount Desert, as may be amended from time to time. Such fee must be submitted with the application form at the time of registration and/or renewal.



G. A registration number will be given to each unit registered. Registrations are limited to the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a different dwelling unit.



VI. License Application



A. All applications for short-term rental and vacation rental licenses shall be filed with the Town on forms provided for this purpose.



B. At a minimum, each applicant for a short-term rental or a vacation rental license shall provide the following information:

1. The street address of the property and unit number, if applicable.

2. The name of the owner of the property and the owner’s address or the owner’s representative address and contact information.

3. The number of short-term rental guests or vacation rental guests allowed.

4. Emergency contact information.

5. Whether the license is for a short-term rental or a vacation rental.



VII. [bookmark: _Hlk154748244]License Procedure – Short-Term Rentals



A. [bookmark: _Hlk155854276]The first effective license cycle of this Ordinance will be from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2025. Thereafter, short-term rental license renewals shall be required on an annual basis. 



B. Initial Annual License Cycle Application Period. Prior to the first effective license cycle, short-term rental license applications may be submitted to the Town any time prior to March 1, 2025. 



C. License Renewals. Short-term rental licenses shall expire on December 31 of each calendar year. Short-term rental license holders may renew such license by submitting a renewal application, via a renewal process established by the Town. Applications for renewals will be accepted until March 1 of each calendar year.  Any renewal applications received after March 1 will be considered late and will be subject to a late fee at a rate established by the Mount Desert Board of Selectmen. 



D. First time applications following March 1, 2025.  First time license applications after March 1, 2025, may be completed at any time during a calendar year.   For the purposes of this Ordinance “first time applications” shall include property owners wishing to license their short-term rental units for the first time, or after more than one year’s lapse of a previously issued license.   



VIII. License Procedure – Vacation Rentals.



A. The first effective license cycle of this Ordinance will be from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2025. Thereafter, vacation rental license renewals shall be required on an annual basis.



B. [bookmark: _Hlk160173970]Initial Annual Registration Cycle. The first effective license cycle of this Ordinance will be from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2025. License applications for vacation rentals may be submitted to the Town any time prior to March 1, 2025. Applications received after March 1, 2025 will be processed as first-time applications, per Section VIII.C on a space available basis until the limits described in Section VIII.E have been reached. After the initial registration cycle, any duly licensed vacation rental may continue operating as long as the license is current and renewed for the current calendar. If the license is not renewed by the expiration date, then the license expires, and the unit then loses the licensed protection provided by the registration. 



C. First time Applications.  After the initial annual registration cycle, subject to the availability of vacation rental licenses, first time license applications may be submitted for processing at any time during a calendar year. For the purposes of this Ordinance, “first time applications” shall include property owners wishing to license their vacation rental units for the first time, or after more than one year’s lapse of a previously issued license.   



D. [bookmark: _Hlk160177527]License Renewals. Vacation rental license holders may renew such license by submitting a renewal application, via a renewal process established by the Town. Applications for renewals will be accepted until March 1 of each calendar year.  Any renewal applications received after March 1 will be considered late and will be subject to a late fee at a rate established by the Mount Desert Board of Selectmen. Late renewal applications will be processed with first-time applications on a space available basis until the limits described in Section VIII.E have been reached.



E. [bookmark: _Hlk160177025]Maximum number of vacation rental registrations.



1. The Town-wide maximum number of vacation rental licenses that may be issued shall not exceed 10% of the Town's total number of dwelling units. The total number of dwelling units shall be determined by the Assessor as of April 1 of each year.



2. In the event that more applications are received during the initial registration cycle (as described in Section VIII.B above) than the allowable number of licenses, the Board of Selectmen will increase the number of registrations issued, during the first registration cycle only, by order. After the initial registration cycle, any duly licensed vacation rental may continue operating as long as the license is current and renewed for the current calendar. If the license is not renewed by the expiration date, then the license expires, and the unit then loses the licensed protection provided by the registration.



3. [bookmark: _Hlk160177326]In the event that the Board of Selectmen receives more applications during any subsequent registration cycle than the allowable number of licenses the town shall establish a wait list. First priority shall be given to renewal applicants who submit a late renewal registration application and shall be awarded on a space available basis based on the order in which the renewal applications were received. First-time applications will be given second priority and shall be awarded on a space available basis through a lottery process held by the Board of Selectmen after timely renewal and late renewal applications have been approved.



IX. Transferability.



A. Short-term Rental Licenses. Short-term rental licenses issued under this ordinance shall be transferable to a new owner as of the day the new owner acquires possession of the property and shall expire at the end of that same calendar year, and shall be subject to treatment as a new “vacation rental” if the ownership and use by the new owner meets the definition of that term.



B. Vacation Rental Licenses. Vacation rental licenses issued under this ordinance shall not be transferable to a new owner or location. Any change of ownership shall require a new license, except transfers of the real estate and related license in a permitted transfer. 



1. A "permitted transfer" is a transfer of the subject real estate and the related license to a permitted transferee. A "permitted transferee" includes 1) another current owner of the subject real estate; 2) the spouse, child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a current owner; 3) a trust for the benefit of a current owner, a current owner's spouse, a current owner's child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a current owner; or 4) for estate planning purposes, a trust, limited-liability company (LLC), corporation or other entity, as long as the beneficiaries of the trust or owners of the entity, as applicable, are a current owner, a current owner's spouse, a current owner's child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a current owner. In the case of a transfer to a permitted transferee, the permitted transferee shall become a "licensee" and an "owner," and the definition of "permitted transferee" shall apply to the new licensee/owner.



C. Licensees/owners shall be required to certify that they comply with the provisions of this section annually and that they have not engaged in any transfers, or been transferees in any transfers, that are not permitted transfers.



D. Licenses are limited to the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a different dwelling unit.



X. Inspection. 



A. Any time that a short-term rental or vacation rental application is submitted for a property, the applicant shall certify on the application that the proposed short-term rental or vacation rental property complies with the standards in this ordinance and with applicable Building Code requirements. The Code Enforcement Officer or designee may inspect the licensed premises to determine compliance with the short-term standards of this ordinance. However, said inspection shall not be required as a condition of license issuance. 



XI. Notice. 



A. The licensee must post a notice that identifies the short-term rental or vacation rental license number and the name, address, telephone number(s), and email address of the owner's local contact person, and the maximum number of short-term rental or vacation rental guests allowed. This notice shall be readily available inside each dwelling being used as a short-term rental or vacation rental.



VI. Standards



At the time of issuance of a license, and at all times during the continuance of a short-term rental or vacation rental license, the following minimum standards shall be met.



A. The property taxes and any other applicable town fees associated with the short-term rental or vacation rental property shall not be in arrears;



B. Street numbers, if applicable, shall be compliant with Town 911 standards.



C. Smoke alarms.	 Smoke alarms shall be installed in each bedroom, outside each separate area used for sleeping, and on each story of the short-term rental unit (including in basements and in habitable attics).



D. Carbon Monoxide Detectors. Carbon monoxide detectors shall be installed in compliance with Title 25 of the Maine Revised Statutes, as may be amended from time to time (25 M.R.S. § 2468, as amended).



E. Fuel Gas Detectors. Fuel gas detectors shall be installed in compliance with 25 M.R.S. § 2469, as amended.



F. Subsurface wastewater disposal system. The short-term rental or vacation rental must have a subsurface wastewater disposal system that complies with all applicable standards of the Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules. 



G. Portable fire extinguishers. At least one appropriately sized portable fire extinguisher shall be mounted in a prominent location within the short-term rental or vacation rental unit.



H. Parking. Short-term rental or vacation rental guests and their guests are prohibited from parking in a manner that impedes access by emergency vehicles to the property or any other property in the neighborhood. The owner must provide sufficient off-street parking for all overnight guest vehicles. The number of guest vehicles allowed at the short-term rental or vacation rental shall be limited to the number of off-site parking spaces designated by the applicant. Garage parking spaces not allowed for short-term rental or vacation rental guest use shall not be used to meet this parking requirement.



I. Advertising. It shall be unlawful to advertise occupancy or use of a short-term rental or vacation rental that has not been licensed. Licensed short-term rentals or vacation rentals in good standing may advertise for use or occupancy beyond the current licensing year. For the purposes of this section, the term "advertise" shall mean any form of communication for marketing that is used to encourage, persuade, or direct viewers, readers or listeners to contract for units, goods and/or services as may be viewed through various media included, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, flyers, handbills, television commercials, radio, signage, direct mail, websites or text messages. The short-term rental or vacation rental advertising must be consistent with the terms of the short-term/vacation rental license.



J. Trash shall be removed from the short-term rental or vacation rental unit on at least a weekly basis while the property is being rented as a short-term/vacation rental.



K. Occupancy limits. The maximum occupancy of a short-term rental or a vacation rental shall be limited to no more than two guests per bedroom, plus two additional guests total for the entire dwelling unit. By way of example, the maximum capacity for a three-bedroom dwelling short-term rental or vacation rental is eight guests (i.e., three bedrooms multiplied by two short-term rental or vacation rental guests, plus an additional two short-term rental or vacation rental guests, for a total of eight short-term rental or vacation rental guests).



VII. Violations and Enforcement



A. [bookmark: _Hlk141961173]Violations and Enforcement



1. Violation of operation without a registration.  It shall be a violation of this Ordinance for any person to advertise for rent, rent, or operate a short-term rental or vacation rental without a valid license.



2. Violation of registration.  The Code Enforcement Department shall enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and the terms and conditions of licenses issued hereunder, and the Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall have authority to investigate all alleged violations of this Ordinance or of said licenses.  If after investigation, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee finds that any provision of this ordinance or any term or condition of any such license is being violated, written notice of such violation shall be given to the owner and/or to any other person responsible for such violation by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Such a notice shall describe the nature of the violation and the action that needs to be taken within a reasonable time (as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer or designee) to correct the violation, including discontinuance of the illegal use of land, buildings, structures or units. A copy of such notice shall be submitted to the Select Board and shall be maintained as a permanent record.



B. Enforcement; Fines and Penalties

 

If, after notice given by the Code Enforcement Officer or designee, the violation is not abated or corrected, any person who continues to violate any provision of the Ordinance or license issued hereunder shall be subject to fines and penalties as set forth in a penalty schedule established by the Board of Selectmen. Each day of each violation shall be considered a separate violation.  Any such fines or penalties may be in addition to any suspension or revocation imposed in accordance with other provisions of this ordinance.

The Board of Selectmen or its authorized agent(s) are hereby authorized to enter into administrative consent agreements for the purposes of eliminating violations of this Ordinance.  



In addition to local administrative proceedings to address violations of this Ordinance, the Town may also institute, or cause to be instituted, any and all actions, legal or equitable, that may be appropriate or necessary for the enforcement of the provisions of this Ordinance. In any administrative enforcement or court action, the Town may seek injunctive relief in addition to fines and penalties. The Town shall be entitled to recover its costs of enforcement, including its reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and out-of-pocket expenses.



C. Appeals



The Board of Appeals may, upon written application of an aggrieved party received by the Town Office within 30 days of any decision or enforcement action by a municipal official or municipal body that interprets or applies this Ordinance, hear appeals from such decision.  For purposes of this section, the term "decision" is limited to an order, decision, or enforcement action made in writing by the Code Enforcement Officer or designee.



Draft

V03012024		Page 1 of 1



 
“License Renewals. Vacation rental license holders may renew such license by submitting a
renewal application, via a renewal process established by the Town. Applications for
renewals will be accepted until March 1 of each calendar year.  Any renewal applications
received after March 1 will be considered late and will be subject to a late fee at a rate
established by the Mount Desert Board of Selectmen. Late renewal applications will be
processed with first-time applications on a space available basis until the limits described in
Section VIII.E have been reached.”

 

 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 1 of 9 

Town of Mount Desert 
Short-Term/Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance 

 
I. Purpose 
 
The Town of Mount Desert recognizes that the ability for some year-round property owners to 
rent their residential dwelling unit and/or accessory dwelling unit as a short-term rental has 
contributed to their ability to remain as a year-round resident of the Town of Mount Desert. At 
the same time, there are legitimate concerns about the increase in number of vacation rentals 
and the undue impacts they can have on the year-round community and quality of life of the 
Town. The purpose of this ordinance is to establish a licensing program to enable the Town of 
Mount Desert to monitor, track, and regulate short-term rentals and vacation rentals in the Town 
and to institute performance standards intended to protect property owners, renters, and 
neighbors from potential negative impacts. 
 
II. Applicability 

 
A. This Ordinance only regulates business licensing of rental units [and does not constitute land 

use regulation. 
 

B. Permitted short-term rentals and vacation rentals. Residential dwelling units may be used as 
short-term rentals or vacation rentals upon the issuance of a short-term rental or vacation 
rental license for the premises in accordance with the requirements of this ordinance. 
 

C. Prohibited short-term rentals and vacation rentals. No person may offer for rent, operate, or 
otherwise use any residential dwelling unit in the Town of Mount Desert for short-term 
rentals or vacation rentals if such person has not secured and maintained a valid short-term 
rental or vacation rental license for the premises. 
 

D. Lodging establishments exempt. The following lodging establishment uses are exempt from 
the licensing requirements and standards of this chapter: hotels, motels, bed-and-breakfasts, 
boarding houses, and inns. 
 

E. A short-term rental or vacation rental does not include dwelling units that are rented for less 
than a total of 15 days in a calendar year or when relatives and friends stay for no monetary 
compensation. 
 

III. Validity and Severability 
If any provision of this chapter shall be found to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity 
shall not affect the remaining provisions of this chapter and, to that end, the provisions of this 
chapter are hereby declared severable. 

 
 
 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 2 of 9 

IV. Definitions  
 
As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 
 
LICENSEE – The holder of a license to operate a short-term rental or vacation rental.  
 
OWNER — An individual person or persons or an entity that is the owner of record of real 
property as documented by deed or other document evidencing ownership recorded at the 
Hancock County Registry of Deeds or Registry of Probate. 
 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNIT —This term shall have the meaning provided for that term in the 
Town of Mount Desert Land Use Zoning Ordinance, as may be amended from time to time. 
 
SEASONAL VACATION RENTAL - The rental of a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, for occupancy 
for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes for fewer than twenty-eight (28) consecutive nights, 
for compensation, directly or indirectly. These structures are occupied only seasonally, typically 
have water service available only seasonally, do not contain insula�on, or whole house hea�ng, 
ven�la�on, and air condi�oning (HVAC) systems, do not have a year-round subsurface wastewater 
disposal system installed, and the electric service is limited a 100 AMP system. Any heating 
appliance shall not have a fuel supply attached capable of heating the structure for more than 24 
hours. For the purposes of this ordinance a seasonal vacation rental shall be treated the same as 
a short-term rental. 
 
SHORT-TERM RENTAL — The rental of a dwelling unit, or portion thereof, for occupancy for 
dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes for fewer than twenty-eight (28) consecutive nights, for 
compensation, directly or indirectly. A short-term rental is owned by the licensee as their primary 
residence.  
 
PRIMARY RESIDENCE – The dwelling unit a person or persons registers as their address for tax 
and government identification purposes, and where he or she resides for more than half of the 
year.  
 
VACATION RENTAL – A residential dwelling unit, or portion thereof, that is not a primary 
residence and is rented to guests for dwelling, sleeping or lodging purposes for fewer than 
twenty-eight (28) consecutive nights, for compensation, directly or indirectly, excluding motels, 
hotels, bed-and-breakfasts, boarding houses, and inns. 
 
V. Requirements 

  
A. For the purposes of this ordinance a seasonal vacation rental shall be treated the same as 

a short-term rental.  
 

B. No short-term rental or vacation rental shall be advertised, rented, or operated without 
the owner first obtaining a short-term rental or vacation rental license. No short-term 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 3 of 9 

rental or vacation rental license shall be issued to an owner unless and until the short-
term rental or vacation rental is in compliance with the requirements and standards of 
this ordinance.  

 
C. A short-term rental or vacation rental license shall be valid only for the calendar year in 

which the license is issued (i.e. all short-term rental and vacation rental licenses expire on 
December 31 of each year).     

 
D. The applicant shall provide all the information requested on the short-term rental or 

vacation rental license application form(s). 
 
E. A short-term rental or vacation rental may only be registered by the legal owner of the 

property or an authorized representative designated in writing. 
 
F. Non-refundable fees for a short-term rental licenses or vacation rental licenses shall be 

as adopted by order of the Board of Selectmen for the Town of Mount Desert, as may be 
amended from time to time. Such fee must be submitted with the application form at the 
time of registration and/or renewal. 

 
G. A registration number will be given to each unit registered. Registrations are limited to 

the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be transferable to a different 
dwelling unit. 
 

VI. License Application 
 
A. All applications for short-term rental and vacation rental licenses shall be filed with the 

Town on forms provided for this purpose. 
 

B. At a minimum, each applicant for a short-term rental or a vacation rental license shall 
provide the following information: 

1. The street address of the property and unit number, if applicable. 

2. The name of the owner of the property and the owner’s address or the owner’s 
representative address and contact information. 

3. The number of short-term rental guests or vacation rental guests allowed. 

4. Emergency contact information. 

5. Whether the license is for a short-term rental or a vacation rental. 
 

VII. License Procedure – Short-Term Rentals 
 
A. The first effective license cycle of this Ordinance will be from January 1, 2025 until 

December 31, 2025. Thereafter, short-term rental license renewals shall be required on 
an annual basis.  



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 4 of 9 

 
B. Initial Annual License Cycle Application Period. Prior to the first effective license cycle, 

short-term rental license applications may be submitted to the Town any time prior to 
March 1, 2025.  

 
C. License Renewals. Short-term rental licenses shall expire on December 31 of each 

calendar year. Short-term rental license holders may renew such license by submitting a 
renewal application, via a renewal process established by the Town. Applications for 
renewals will be accepted until March 1 of each calendar year.  Any renewal applications 
received after March 1 will be considered late and will be subject to a late fee at a rate 
established by the Mount Desert Board of Selectmen.  

 
D. First time applications following March 1, 2025.  First time license applications after 

March 1, 2025, may be completed at any time during a calendar year.   For the purposes 
of this Ordinance “first time applications” shall include property owners wishing to license 
their short-term rental units for the first time, or after more than one year’s lapse of a 
previously issued license.    

 
VIII. License Procedure – Vacation Rentals. 

 
A. The first effective license cycle of this Ordinance will be from January 1, 2025 until 

December 31, 2025. Thereafter, vacation rental license renewals shall be required on an 
annual basis. 
 

B. Initial Annual Registration Cycle. The first effective license cycle of this Ordinance will be 
from January 1, 2025 until December 31, 2025. License applications for vacation rentals 
may be submitted to the Town any time prior to March 1, 2025. Applications received 
after March 1, 2025 will be processed as first-time applications, per Section VIII.C on a 
space available basis until the limits described in Section VIII.E have been reached. After 
the initial registration cycle, any duly licensed vacation rental may continue operating as 
long as the license is current and renewed for the current calendar. If the license is not 
renewed by the expiration date, then the license expires, and the unit then loses the 
licensed protection provided by the registration.  
 

C. First time Applications.  After the initial annual registration cycle, subject to the 
availability of vacation rental licenses, first time license applications may be submitted for 
processing at any time during a calendar year. For the purposes of this Ordinance, “first 
time applications” shall include property owners wishing to license their vacation rental 
units for the first time, or after more than one year’s lapse of a previously issued license.    
 

D. License Renewals. Vacation rental license holders may renew such license by submitting 
a renewal application, via a renewal process established by the Town. Applications for 
renewals will be accepted until March 1 of each calendar year.  Any renewal applications 
received after March 1 will be considered late and will be subject to a late fee at a rate 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 5 of 9 

established by the Mount Desert Board of Selectmen. Late renewal applications will be 
processed with first-time applications on a space available basis until the limits described 
in Section VIII.E have been reached. 
 

E. Maximum number of vacation rental registrations. 
 

1. The Town-wide maximum number of vacation rental licenses that may be issued shall 
not exceed 10% of the Town's total number of dwelling units. The total number of 
dwelling units shall be determined by the Assessor as of April 1 of each year. 
 

2. In the event that more applications are received during the initial registration cycle 
(as described in Section VIII.B above) than the allowable number of licenses, the Board 
of Selectmen will increase the number of registrations issued, during the first 
registration cycle only, by order. After the initial registration cycle, any duly licensed 
vacation rental may continue operating as long as the license is current and renewed 
for the current calendar. If the license is not renewed by the expiration date, then the 
license expires, and the unit then loses the licensed protection provided by the 
registration. 

 
3. In the event that the Board of Selectmen receives more applications during any 

subsequent registration cycle than the allowable number of licenses the town shall 
establish a wait list. First priority shall be given to renewal applicants who submit a 
late renewal registration application and shall be awarded on a space available basis 
based on the order in which the renewal applications were received. First-time 
applications will be given second priority and shall be awarded on a space available 
basis through a lottery process held by the Board of Selectmen after timely renewal 
and late renewal applications have been approved. 

 
IX. Transferability. 

 
A. Short-term Rental Licenses. Short-term rental licenses issued under this ordinance shall 

be transferable to a new owner as of the day the new owner acquires possession of the 
property and shall expire at the end of that same calendar year, and shall be subject to 
treatment as a new “vacation rental” if the ownership and use by the new owner meets 
the definition of that term. 
 

B. Vacation Rental Licenses. Vacation rental licenses issued under this ordinance shall not 
be transferable to a new owner or location. Any change of ownership shall require a new 
license, except transfers of the real estate and related license in a permitted transfer.  

 
1. A "permitted transfer" is a transfer of the subject real estate and the related 

license to a permitted transferee. A "permitted transferee" includes 1) another 
current owner of the subject real estate; 2) the spouse, child(ren) and/or 
grandchild(ren) of a current owner; 3) a trust for the benefit of a current owner, a 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 6 of 9 

current owner's spouse, a current owner's child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a 
current owner; or 4) for estate planning purposes, a trust, limited-liability 
company (LLC), corporation or other entity, as long as the beneficiaries of the trust 
or owners of the entity, as applicable, are a current owner, a current owner's 
spouse, a current owner's child(ren) and/or grandchild(ren) of a current owner. In 
the case of a transfer to a permitted transferee, the permitted transferee shall 
become a "licensee" and an "owner," and the definition of "permitted transferee" 
shall apply to the new licensee/owner. 
 

C. Licensees/owners shall be required to certify that they comply with the provisions of this 
section annually and that they have not engaged in any transfers, or been transferees in 
any transfers, that are not permitted transfers. 
 

D. Licenses are limited to the dwelling unit for which they are issued and shall not be 
transferable to a different dwelling unit. 
 

X. Inspection.  
 

A. Any time that a short-term rental or vacation rental application is submitted for a 
property, the applicant shall certify on the application that the proposed short-term 
rental or vacation rental property complies with the standards in this ordinance and with 
applicable Building Code requirements. The Code Enforcement Officer or designee may 
inspect the licensed premises to determine compliance with the short-term standards of 
this ordinance. However, said inspection shall not be required as a condition of license 
issuance.  

 
XI. Notice.  

 
A. The licensee must post a notice that identifies the short-term rental or vacation rental 

license number and the name, address, telephone number(s), and email address of the 
owner's local contact person, and the maximum number of short-term rental or vacation 
rental guests allowed. This notice shall be readily available inside each dwelling being 
used as a short-term rental or vacation rental. 

 
VI. Standards 

 
At the time of issuance of a license, and at all times during the continuance of a short-term rental 
or vacation rental license, the following minimum standards shall be met. 
 

A. The property taxes and any other applicable town fees associated with the short-term 
rental or vacation rental property shall not be in arrears; 

 
B. Street numbers, if applicable, shall be compliant with Town 911 standards. 

 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 7 of 9 

C. Smoke alarms.  Smoke alarms shall be installed in each bedroom, outside each separate 
area used for sleeping, and on each story of the short-term rental unit (including in 
basements and in habitable attics). 
 

D. Carbon Monoxide Detectors. Carbon monoxide detectors shall be installed in compliance 
with Title 25 of the Maine Revised Statutes, as may be amended from time to time (25 
M.R.S. § 2468, as amended). 
 

E. Fuel Gas Detectors. Fuel gas detectors shall be installed in compliance with 25 M.R.S. § 
2469, as amended. 
 

F. Subsurface wastewater disposal system. The short-term rental or vacation rental must 
have a subsurface wastewater disposal system that complies with all applicable standards 
of the Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules.  
 

G. Portable fire extinguishers. At least one appropriately sized portable fire extinguisher 
shall be mounted in a prominent location within the short-term rental or vacation rental 
unit. 
 

H. Parking. Short-term rental or vacation rental guests and their guests are prohibited from 
parking in a manner that impedes access by emergency vehicles to the property or any 
other property in the neighborhood. The owner must provide sufficient off-street parking 
for all overnight guest vehicles. The number of guest vehicles allowed at the short-term 
rental or vacation rental shall be limited to the number of off-site parking spaces 
designated by the applicant. Garage parking spaces not allowed for short-term rental or 
vacation rental guest use shall not be used to meet this parking requirement. 
 

I. Advertising. It shall be unlawful to advertise occupancy or use of a short-term rental or 
vacation rental that has not been licensed. Licensed short-term rentals or vacation rentals 
in good standing may advertise for use or occupancy beyond the current licensing year. 
For the purposes of this section, the term "advertise" shall mean any form of 
communication for marketing that is used to encourage, persuade, or direct viewers, 
readers or listeners to contract for units, goods and/or services as may be viewed through 
various media included, but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, flyers, handbills, 
television commercials, radio, signage, direct mail, websites or text messages. The short-
term rental or vacation rental advertising must be consistent with the terms of the short-
term/vacation rental license. 
 

J. Trash shall be removed from the short-term rental or vacation rental unit on at least a 
weekly basis while the property is being rented as a short-term/vacation rental. 
 

K. Occupancy limits. The maximum occupancy of a short-term rental or a vacation rental 
shall be limited to no more than two guests per bedroom, plus two additional guests total 
for the entire dwelling unit. By way of example, the maximum capacity for a three-



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 8 of 9 

bedroom dwelling short-term rental or vacation rental is eight guests (i.e., three 
bedrooms multiplied by two short-term rental or vacation rental guests, plus an 
additional two short-term rental or vacation rental guests, for a total of eight short-term 
rental or vacation rental guests). 
 

VII. Violations and Enforcement 
 
A. Violations and Enforcement 

 
1. Violation of operation without a registration.  It shall be a violation of this Ordinance 

for any person to advertise for rent, rent, or operate a short-term rental or vacation 
rental without a valid license. 

 
2. Violation of registration.  The Code Enforcement Department shall enforce the 

provisions of this Ordinance and the terms and conditions of licenses issued 
hereunder, and the Code Enforcement Officer or designee shall have authority to 
investigate all alleged violations of this Ordinance or of said licenses.  If after 
investigation, the Code Enforcement Officer or designee finds that any provision of 
this ordinance or any term or condition of any such license is being violated, written 
notice of such violation shall be given to the owner and/or to any other person 
responsible for such violation by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Such a 
notice shall describe the nature of the violation and the action that needs to be taken 
within a reasonable time (as determined by the Code Enforcement Officer or 
designee) to correct the violation, including discontinuance of the illegal use of land, 
buildings, structures or units. A copy of such notice shall be submitted to the Select 
Board and shall be maintained as a permanent record. 

 
B. Enforcement; Fines and Penalties 

  
If, after notice given by the Code Enforcement Officer or designee, the violation is not 
abated or corrected, any person who continues to violate any provision of the Ordinance 
or license issued hereunder shall be subject to fines and penalties as set forth in a penalty 
schedule established by the Board of Selectmen. Each day of each violation shall be 
considered a separate violation.  Any such fines or penalties may be in addition to any 
suspension or revocation imposed in accordance with other provisions of this ordinance. 
The Board of Selectmen or its authorized agent(s) are hereby authorized to enter into 
administrative consent agreements for the purposes of eliminating violations of this 
Ordinance.   
 
In addition to local administrative proceedings to address violations of this Ordinance, the 
Town may also institute, or cause to be instituted, any and all actions, legal or equitable, 
that may be appropriate or necessary for the enforcement of the provisions of this 
Ordinance. In any administrative enforcement or court action, the Town may seek 
injunctive relief in addition to fines and penalties. The Town shall be entitled to recover 



 

Draft 
V03012024  Page 9 of 9 

its costs of enforcement, including its reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and out-of-
pocket expenses. 
 

C. Appeals 
 
The Board of Appeals may, upon written application of an aggrieved party received by the 
Town Office within 30 days of any decision or enforcement action by a municipal official 
or municipal body that interprets or applies this Ordinance, hear appeals from such 
decision.  For purposes of this section, the term "decision" is limited to an order, decision, 
or enforcement action made in writing by the Code Enforcement Officer or designee. 

 



 

 

 TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
WARRANT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
Minutes from: 

Tuesday, February 6, 2024 6:00PM 
 
 
Northeast Harbor Meeting Hall and via Zoom  

Members Present: Phil Lichtenstein, Katrina Carter, Tim Murphy, Mike 
Olsen, Lauren Kuffler, Owen Craighead, Donna Beals, Carmen Sanford, 
Alan Kimmerly, Rosemary Matchak, Blakeslee Bell 

Zoom: Megan Bailey, Jamie Blaine 

Excused: Bill Ferm, Jesse Hartson, Craig Roebuck, Stephanie Reece, 
Jerry Miller, Kathy Miller 

Absent: Marina McGarr  

Guests: Paul Paradis, Hancock County Commissioner; Brian Henkel, 
Mount Desert Public Works Director 

1. 6:00pm  Call Meeting to order, minutes from the 1/30 meeting 
approved.  

2. 6:02pm  Paul Paradis discussed how Hancock County’s budget is 
funded by the various municipalities.  Based on property 
assessments, Mt. Desert is the largest contributor at 15.66%.  The 
largest cost centers to the County are the jail, the Sheriff’s 
department, the Registry of Deeds and the Probate Court.  
Commissioner Paradis fielded a number of questions from WC 
members relating to where and how various funds are spent and the 
overall functioning of County governance.  It was pointed out that 
some funds make their way back to the Town, such as $140,000 for 
broadband expansion. 

3. 6:50pm  Public Works Director Brian Henkel thoroughly discussed 
how the reserve accounts within his budget have now been folded 
into the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  As to his budget, there are 



 

 

some modest increases for various requisite chemicals used for 
septic treatment, etc.  The street sign budget has also increased.  
The WC asked Mr. Henkel a number of questions related to line items 
in the budget, along with issues such as the possibility of the regional 
High School connecting it’s waste water to the Somesville septic plant 
and the low wires along the northbound Rt. 198 roadway. 

4. 7:45pm  Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meetings: Discussion of the School budget is Monday, February 
12 at 6:00pm.  The Marina and the Land Use Zoning Ordinance will be the 
following night, Tuesday, February 13 at 6pm.  Both meetings at the 
meeting hall and by Zoom.  

Guests: 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Owen Craighead, Recording Secretary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT 
WARRANT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

Minutes from: 
Tuesday, February 13, 2024  6:00PM 

 

 
Northeast Harbor Meeting Hall and via Zoom  

Members Present: Phil Lichtenstein, Katrina Carter, Stephanie Reece, Tim 
Murphy, Mike Olsen, Lauren Kuffler, Owen Craighead, Alan Kimmerly, 
Rosemary Matchak, Blakeslee Bell 

Zoom: Jamie Blaine, Donna Beals, Carmen Sanford 

Excused: Bill Ferm, Jesse Hartson, Craig Roebuck 

Absent: Marina McGarr, Jerry Miller, Kathy Miller, Megan Bailey 

Guests: Noel Musson of the Musson Group; Kim Keene, Code 
Enforcement Officer; John Lemon, Harbormaster; Gail Marshall & Tracy 
Keller, Mt. Desert Planning Board 

1. 6:00pm  Call Meeting to order, minutes from the 2/6 meeting 
approved with a correction to the next meeting dates, 
announcements. 

2. 6:10pm  Noel Musson addressed a host of changes to the Land Use 
Zoning Ordinance across 16 articles.  Most of the changes related to 
setbacks, clarifications in wording, and corrections to the contents of 
certain articles.  Predictably, Article 15: “Short-Term Rental and 
Vacation Rental Licensing Ordinance” prompted the most discussion. 
Mr. Musson, along with Gail Marshall and Tracy Keller of the planning 
board, were helpful in explaining the rationale for article 15’s 
existence and they fielded a number of questions both real and 
hypothetical from the WC related to article 15. 

3. 7:17pm  CEO Kim Keene began by covering the planning board 
budget.  There is an increase of $65,000 in aid of hiring a consultant 
for a complete re-drafting of the Town’s Comprehensive Plan as it is 



 

 

badly outdated.  The CEO budget will rise significantly since the 
current part-time Deputy CEO position is transitioning to full-time.  
The budgeted salary for this yet-to-be-filled post is set at $64,000.  An 
extra $10,000 is also included in the budget for a planning consultant.  
Ms. Keene and Mr. Musson concluded by answering additional 
questions from the WC. 

4. 7:45pm  Harbormaster John Lemoine’s budget is rising approximately 
8.5% due almost exclusively due to inflation.  When asked about 
damage from the back-to-back January storms, Mr. Lemoine 
estimated about $500 in damages in total, which is remarkable. 
 

Upcoming Meeting: Monday, February 26 for third party requests 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Owen Craighead, Recording Secretary  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  





 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
  





Application Received
Funded 
Prior 

Yr
Group Name ContactFn ContactLn 2024 Request

2023 Funded 
Amount

1/25/2024 NO Aid Society Otter Creek John Macauley $10,000.00 $0.00
1/23/2024 Yes Bar Harbor Food Pantry Tom Reeve $3,500.00 $3,500.00

12/28/2023 Yes Downeast Community Partners Sharon Catus $5,574.52 $3,187.00
1/8/2024 Yes Downeast Horizons Inc. Ashley Johnson $6,000.00 $6,000.00

12/14/2023 Yes Eastern Area Agency On Aging Chris Hill $750.00 $750.00
2/1/2024 Yes Great Harbor Maritime Museum Sydney Roberts-Rockefeller $5,800.00 $5,500.00
1/19/2024 No Hospice Volunteers of Hancock County Kathy Baillargeon $1,500.00 $0.00
1/31/2024 Yes Island Connections Carissa Tinker $2,500.00 $2,500.00
1/22/2024 Yes Island Housing Trust Marla O'Byrne $7,500.00 $7,500.00
1/22/2024 Yes Lifeflight Foundation Macmillan Ashley $1,000.00 $1,000.00
2/1/2024 Yes Mt. Desert Chamber of Commerce Sue Spoelfof $28,500.00 $28,500.00
1/22/2024 NO Mt. Desert Community Development Dan McKay $5,000.00 $0.00
1/26/2024 Yes Mt. Desert Island Campfire Coalition Anne-Marie Hart $3,000.00 $3,000.00
2/1/2024 Yes Mt. Desert Nursery School Sarah Hinckley $20,000.00 $20,000.00
1/30/2024 Yes Mt. Desert Nursing Association Sarah Hinckley $35,000.00 $35,000.00
1/22/2024 NO Northern Light Home Care & Hospice Madeline Taylor $1,200.00 $0.00
1/29/2024 Yes Seal Harbor VIS Deborah Brown $55,000.00 $55,000.00

$191,824.52 $171,437.00



 

Date: February 29, 2024 

To: Selectboard 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Five-year Contract with Eastern Maine Recycling 

The Selectboard meeting agenda on February 26th included a discussion of the Solid Waste Contract 

(Contract) with Eastern Maine Recycling (EMR). At that time, I informed the Selectboard that the 

Contract had an auto-renewing clause which included a date of March 5 and an apparent requirement 

that Contract renewal to be approved by the voters at the Annual Town Meeting in May. I pointed out 

the inconsistency in the timing of the auto-renewal in March and the approval by voters in May and 

informed the Selectboard that I had sought an opinion from the Town’s legal counsel on this 

inconsistency. I have received that opinion which clarifies that the original contract had a requirement 

to be approved by the voters but that the renewal clause does not include that same requirement. The 

renewal of the Contract can move forward with the approval of the Selectboard. 

The Town has contracted waste management services through this Contract with EMR for the last 15 

years and it is my recommendation that the Town continue to do so. I recommend that the Selectboard 

allow the existing Contract to auto-renew on March 5th, 2024 with the understanding that some 

housekeeping edits are required, and that the Public Works Director be authorized to work with EMR on 

those edits. An updated agreement will be brought back to the Selectboard for final approval at an 

upcoming meeting. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Mae Wyler, Finance Director 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Enclosures: 2019-2024 Solid Waste Contract 

 

Memorandum 



Town of Mount Desert 
SOLID WASTE CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this/1.,.day of fo~2019, by and between E.M.R., 
INC., a Maine corporation having a place of business in Southwest Harbor, Hancock County, Maine, (the 
"Contractor") and the TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT, a municipal corporation duly existing under the laws of the 
State of Maine, having a principal place of business at 21 Sea Street, Northeast Harbor, Hancock County, Maine, 
("Town"). 

W I TN E S S ETH: 

WHEREAS, the Contractor owns and operates a solid waste transfer station, licensed by the State of 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP"), in the Town of Southwest Harbor, Hancock County, 
Maine, (the "SWH Facility") that provides for the acceptance, storage, handling, processing, marketing and/or 
transportation of non-hazardous Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic Waste, Wood Wastes, 
Construction and Demolition Debris ("COD"), Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods, Tires, and Inert Fill. 

WHEREAS, it is understood between the Town and the Contractor that the terms and conditions as 
expressed in this agreement are such that the Contractor must have the ability to manage and operate the SWH 
Facility in conformance with the DEP, USEPA and other state and federal laws, statutes, rules and regulations. 

WHEREAS, the Contractor provides Municipal Solid Waste transportation services from the SWH 
Facility to DEP licensed waste processing and disposal facilities, such as but not limited to, Coastal Resources of 
Maine (CRM), 92 Bouchard Way, Hampden, Maine and Juniper Ridge Landfill (JRL), 2828 Bennoch Road, 
Alton, Maine and Waste Management-Crossroads (WM), 327 Mercer Road, Norridgewock, Maine. 

WHEREAS, the Town has made arrangements with CRM (Disposal Facility-MSW) for the disposal of 
Municipal Solid Waste generated by the Town. 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to enter into an agreement with the Contractor for the disposal of Solid 
Waste through the use of the SWH Facility and for the transportation of Solid Waste from the SWH Facility to DEP 
licensed facilities for those waste materials presently being transported by the Contractor including but not 
necessarily limited to Disposal Facility-COD, Disposal Facility-MSW, Disposal Facility-Recycle and Disposal 
Facility-Wood Waste for the disposal of non-hazardous Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic 
Waste, Wood Wastes, Construction and Demolition Debris (COD), Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods, 
Tires, and Inert Fill. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual covenants and agreements 
herein contained, the Contractor and the Town hereby agree as follows: 

1.0 TERM: The term of this Agreement shall be for Five (5) years beginning July l, 2019 and ending June 
30, 2024. Each twelve-month period is a "Contract Year". This Agreement shall automatically renew 
with the same terms and conditions unless the Town provides the Contractor with written notice of 
termination by "Certified Mail" on or before March 5, 2024. The renewed contract term shall be from July 
1, 2024 to June 30, 2029. 

2.0 DEFINITIONS: 

The capitalized words and phrases used in this Solid Waste Contract shall have the following meanings 
(such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of such words and phrases): 

"Acadia Disposal District" means a quasi-municipal corporation duly existing under the laws of the State 
of Maine having a mailing address of P.O. Box 248, Northeast Harbor, ME 04662 whose member 
municipalities include the Towns of Cranberry Isles, Frenchboro, Mount Desert, Tremont and Trenton. 

Page 1 of 19 



"Authorized Agent" means a person, partnership or corporation that is authorized to dispose of 
Permissible Wastes at the SWH Facility on behalfofthe Town or an Authorized Individual. 

"Authorized Individual" means any person, partnership, corporation or other entity that either owns, 
rents, leases (on a permanent or temporary basis) a dwelling or operates a commercial establishment in a 
Town. 

"Bulky Waste" is a portion ofCDD and means items such as, but not limited to, mattresses, box springs, 
upholstered furniture, carpeting, floor padding and similar materials. 

"Co-mingled Containers" means recyclable containers made from polyethylene terephthalate (PETE #1), 
high density polyethylene (HDPE #2 plastic), ferrous cans and aluminum cans that contain a volume of 
one gallon or less. 

"Compostable Organic Waste" means Residential and Commercial Compostable Organic Wastes that 
have been separated from Transfer Solid Waste prior to acceptance at the SWH Facility. 

"Contract Year" means the twelve-month period beginning on July land ending on June 30. 

"Construction and Demolition Debris" ("CDD") means Solid Waste resulting from construction, 
remodeling, repair and demolition of structures, said wastes may include, but are not limited to, building 
materials, dimensioned lumber, discarded furniture, asphalt, wall board, pipes, plumbing fixtures 
such as toilets and sinks, conduits, wire, sheetrock, plaster, insulation, roofing materials, painted wood, 
pressure treated wood, packaging materials and bituminous concrete pavement. It excludes: partially 
filled containers of glues, tars, solvents, resins, paints, caulking compounds, friable asbestos and 
other special wastes. 

"Demolition Wood" is a portion ofCDD and means waste items such as, but not limited to, lumber, and 
wood items from Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD) waste. 

"Developed Parcel" means a parcel ofland located within the boundary of the Town and specifically 
identified by the Town on its tax maps with a tax map number and lot number and which said lot has 
structures or is permitted to have structures thereon. 

"Diesel Fuel Price Per Gallon" means the diesel fuel price per gallon, as published for the last week of 
the month by the Energy Information Administration (EIA) of the Department of Energy (New England 
Region), shall be used by the Contractor to calculate the diesel fuel charge for the payment categories as 
stated in section I 0.17 Fuel Charge. 

"Disposal Facility-COD" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine and licensed by the DEP 
to accept CDD, Bulky Waste, Demolition Wood Wastes and similar items. The primary Disposal Facility
CDD is Juniper Ridge Landfill, 2828 Bennoch Road, Old Town, ME 04468. The alternate Disposal 
Facility-COD is Crossroads Landfill, 357 Mercer Road, Norridgewock, ME 04597. 

"Disposal Facility-MSW" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine and licensed by the 
DEP to accept Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) which shall include Transfer Solid Waste but shall not 
include CDD, Bulky Waste, Recycle Waste, Universal Waste, Scrap Metal, White Goods and Wood 
Waste. The primary Disposal Facility-MSW is CRM. All MSW shall be taken to CRM unless otherwise 
directed by the Town's representative(s) including but not necessarily being limited to the Municipal 
Review Committee (MRC) on behalf of the Town or the Town's Selectmen or their designee(s). The 
alternate Disposal Facility-MSW recommended by the Town is Crossroads Landfill, 357 Mercer Road, 
Norridgewock, ME 04957. Before any change in Disposal Facility-MSW is made, the Contractor and the 
Town, with assistance from the MRC or the Town's Board of Selectmen or their designee(s), shall agree 
to terms including but not necessarily limited to any change in transportation costs. However, it is 
understood between the Parties that in the event the Contractor is notified by CRM or MRC that CRM is 

Page 2 of 19 



not accepting MSW on a temporary basis, the Contractor shall deliver said MSW to the alternate Disposal 
Facility-MSW. 

"Disposal Facility-Recycle" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine which is permitted to 
accept Recyclable Items which may include corrugated cardboard; mixed newspaper and magazines; co
mingled containers (one gallon or less) which may include metal (aluminum, steel, and tin) and plastic 
containers numbered l and 2. The primary Disposal Facility-Recycle is Coastal Resources of Maine, 92 
Bouchard Way, Hampden, Maine. The alternate Disposal Facility-Recycle is Pine Tree Waste - Zero Sort, 
Old Town, ME. All Recyclable Items shall be taken to CRM unless otherwise directed by the Town's 
Representative(s), said representative(s) including but not limited to the MRC or the Town's Board of 
Selectmen or their designee(s). 

"Disposal Facility-Tires" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine which is licensed by the 
DEP to accept tires. The primary Disposal Facility-Tires is BDS Waste Disposal Inc, 357 Mercer Rd., 
Norridgewock, Maine. 

"Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste" means a disposal facility located in the State of Maine which is 
licensed by the DEP to accept Green Wood and Stumps. The primary Disposal Facility-Green Wood 
Waste is Gary Pomeroy Logging, 1909 Hammond Street, Hermon, ME 04401. 

"Freon/Mercury Removal" means Scrap Metal that contains Freon or Mercury and requires the Freon or 
Mercury to be removed. 

"Green Wood" means land clearing debris that is reasonably free of stumps, soil material and rock. 

"Guaranteed Annual Tonnage" (GAT) means the minimum tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Items and Compostable Organic Waste delivered by the Town or its Authorized Individuals to 
the Contractor in each contract year. GAT shall equal the sum of Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items 
and Compostable Organic Waste. 

"Hazardous Waste" means a waste substance or material, in any physical state, designated as hazardous 
by the State of Maine Board of Environmental Protection under section 1319-0. It does not include waste 
resulting from normal household or agricultural activities. The fact that a hazardous waste or part or 
constituent may have value or other use or may be sold or exchanged does not exclude it from this 
definition. 

"Hot Load" means waste which is on fire or smoldering when delivered to the SWH Facility. 

"Inert Fill" means clean soil material, including soil from road ditching and sand from winter sand 
cleanup, rock, bricks, and cured concrete without rebar, which are not mixed with other solid or liquid 
waste, and which are not derived from an ore mining activity. 

"Land Clearing Debris" means Solid Waste resulting from the clearing ofland and consists solely of 
brush, stumps, soil material and rock. 

"Miles or Distance" means the actual road miles traveled by the Contractor from the SWH Facility to the 
disposal site. It is understood by the Town that the Contractor may be prevented by the State of Maine or 
the United States of America Departments of Transportation to use certain roads, such as Routes 95 and 
395, due to the gross vehicle weight limits imposed on roads that are less than the weight limits the 
Contractor is registered to haul. 

"Municipal Solid Waste" means solid waste emanating from household and normal commercial sources. 
Municipal Solid Waste includes front end process residue from the processing of Municipal Solid Waste. 

"Net Sale Price" means the difference between the price received from the sale of items less 
transportation and marketing expenses. 

Page 3 of 19 



"Non-Permissible Waste" means the following items are specifically excluded and not permitted for 
deposit at the SWH Facility or for transport to a Disposal Facility: toxic or highly volatile materials, used 
oil, waste oil, other petroleum products, sludge, septage, and any substance now or hereafter classified as 
Hazardous Waste or Special Waste by DEP and/or the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
("EPA"), in any quantity whatsoever. 

"Parties" means the Contractor and the Town, or those respective designees, as defined elsewhere in the 
Agreement. 

"Permissible Wastes" means only those wastes specifically permitted during the term of this Agreement 
by the DEP as acceptable at a Solid Waste facility. Wastes not permitted by the DEP must not be accepted 
at the SWH Facility. Hazardous Waste, or waste not easily identified by the Contractor as non-hazardous, 
must not be accepted at the SWH Facility. Permissible Wastes shall include Transfer Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic Waste, Wood Wastes, Construction and Demolition Debris, 
Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal, Tires, White Goods, Inert Fill, and Universal Waste. 

"Recyclable" means possessing physical and economic characteristics that allow a material to be 
recycled. 

"Recyclable Items" means the list of Recyclable Items recovered from the Transfer Solid Waste stream 
that the designated Disposal Facility-Recycle accepts. All Recyclable Items delivered to the SWH Facility 
shall be clean and in conformity to the specifications required by the Disposal Facility-Recycle. 

"Recycle" means to recover, separate, collect and reprocess waste materials for sale or reuse other than as 
fuel for the generation of heat, steam or electricity. 

"Recycling" means the collection, separation, recovery and sale or reuse of materials that would otherwise 
be disposed of or processed as waste or the mechanical separation and treatment of waste, other than 
through combustion, and the creation and recovery of reusable materials other than as fuel for the 
generation of electricity. 

"Recycling Processing Center" means a recycling center that, (l) receives commercial size deliveries of 
recyclable items, (2) uses leading-edge technology to permit the acceptance of a wider variety of 
Recyclable Items in an efficient and economical manner and (3) reduces but does not necessarily require 
the need to separate Recyclable Items by category for collection. A Recycling Processing Center may 
include Single Sort (single stream) Recycling System. 

"Scrap Metal" means bits and pieces of metal parts (such as bars, turnings, rods, sheets, and wire) or 
metal pieces that may be attached or combined together with bolts, welds or solder to form a product (such 
as scrap automobiles, radiators, or furniture) which whether worn or outdated can be recycled and which 
are not otherwise mixed with or contaminated with non-metal solid or hazardous wastes. For the purposes 
of this contract White Goods and junked vehicles shall be considered Scrap Metal. 

"Septage" means waste, refuse, effluent, sludge and any other materials from septic tanks, cesspools or 
any other similar facilities. 

"Single Sort Recycling" means a recycling method or program that permits the acceptance of Recyclable 
Items, as defined above, at the SWH Facility in a co-mingled form. The acceptable recyclable item list 
will be determined by the Disposal Facility-Recycle after discussion with the Town of any proposed 
changes, consideration of concerns they might have and upon reaching an agreement between the Parties. 

"Sludge" means nonhazardous solid, semisolid or liquid waste generated from a municipal, commercial or 
industrial wastewater treatment plant, water supply treatment plant or wet air pollution control facility or 
any waste having similar characteristics and effect. The term does not include industrial discharges that 

Page 4 of 19 



are point sources subject to permits under the federal Clean Water Act, 33 United States Code, Section 
I 342 (1999). 

"Solid Waste" means useless, unwanted or discarded solid material with insufficient liquid content to be 
free flowing, including, but not limited to, rubbish, garbage, refuse-derived fuel, scrap materials, junk, 
refuse, inert fill material and landscape refuse, but does not include hazardous waste, biomedical waste, 
septage or agricultural wastes. The fact that a Solid Waste or constituent of the waste may have value or 
other use or may be sold or exchanged does not exclude it from this definition. 

"Special Waste" means any Solid Waste generated by sources other than domestic and typical 
commercial establishments that exists in such unusual quantity or in such chemical or physical state, or 
any combination thereof, that may disrupt or impair effective waste management or threaten the public 
health, human safety or the environment and requires special handling, transportation and disposal 
procedures. Special Waste includes, but not limited to: 
A. Ash; 
B. Industrial and industrial process waste; 
C. Sludge and dewatered septage; 
D. Debris from nonhazardous chemical spills and cleanup of those spills; 
E. Contaminated soils and dredge; 
F. Asbestos and asbestos-containing waste; 
G. Sand blast grit and nonliquid paint waste; 
H. High or low pH waste; 
I. Spent filter media and residue; 
J. Shredder residue and 
K. Other waste designated by the Board of Environmental Protection, or by rule of the Department of 

Environmental Protection. 

"Solid Waste Transfer Station Services" means services which include the storage, handling, 
processing, marketing, disposal and/or transportation of Permissible Wastes to licensed Solid Waste 
disposal sites, as described herein. 

"Storage Box" means a storage box or crate that is provided by the contractor in the recycling center for 
the use by an authorized individual for the collection of small loads of Transfer Solid Waste and 
Recyclable Items. 

"Stumps" means stumps. 

"Tires" means Solid Waste consisting of any used, scrap, or otherwise discarded rubberized vehicle tires, 
including whole tires as well as products derived from the processing of whole tires, including but not 
limited to shredded or chipped or crumb rubber. 

"Transfer" means to receive, store, accumulate, and/or consolidate Solid Waste in sufficient volume to be 
able to containerize, with or without compaction, for efficient transportation to another facility. It does not 
include the transport of Solid Waste. 

"Transfer Station" means any Solid Waste facility constructed and managed for the transfer of Solid 
Waste. 

"Transfer Solid Waste" means non-hazardous Solid Waste, as defined by DEP Solid Waste Management 
Rules, as may be amended from time to time, and Permissible Waste for delivery to Disposal Facility
MSW for acceptance at CRM unless an alternative Disposal Facility-MSW has been agreed to between the 
Parties as described above in section titled Disposal Facility-MSW. 

"Universal Waste" means any waste listed in section 3.A(l3) (b) of Chapter 850, the Maine Hazardous 
Waste Management Rules, including but not limited to cathode ray tubes (CRT's); mercury-containing 
lamps; mercury-containing thermostats; metal hydride, nickel-cadmium, small sealed lead acid, lithium 

Page 5 of 19 



and mercuric and silver oxide button batteries (collectively "Batteries"); electronic wastes ("e-wastes"); 
and totally enclosed, non-leaking polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB) ballasts. 

"Vegetative Wastes" means wastes consisting of plant matter. These include plant stalks, hulls, leaves, 
and tree waste processed through a wood chipper. 

"Waste Oil" means petroleum-based or synthetic oil that, through use or handling, has become unsuitable 
for its original purpose due to the presence of impurities or loss of original properties. Waste oil that 
exhibits hazardous waste characteristics, or has been contaminated with hazardous wastes in excess of 
quantities normally occurring in waste oil shall be considered hazardous waste. 

"White Goods" means large appliances, including but not limited to stoves, refrigerators, freezers, 
washing machines, clothes dryers, hot water heaters, dishwashers, and air conditioners. 

"Wood Wastes" means brush, Stumps, lumber, bark, wood chips, shavings, slabs, edgings, slash, sawdust 
and wood from production rejects that are not mixed with other Solid or liquid Waste. 

"Yard Waste" means grass clippings, leaves reasonable free of branches and other similar vegative 
matter. 

3.0 Jurisdiction and Exclusive Rights: It is agreed that the Contractor shall have the exclusive jurisdiction 
over the SWH Facility and shall designate the off-loading areas. The Town also agrees (a) that the Town 
and/or its Authorized Agents shall deliver all Permissible Wastes collected by the Town, by its Authorized 
Agents or through a contract in which the Town is a party, to the SWH Facility and (b) that the Town shall 
not compensate any person, partnership or corporation other than the Contractor for the disposal of 
Permissible Wastes except for Transfer Solid Waste delivered to the Disposal Facility by the Contractor, 
see section 11. "Payments to Disposal Facility-MSW". 

Nothing in this section shall prohibit the Town from compensating any persons, partnerships or 
corporations for waste collection services furnished by that person, partnership or corporation to the Town, 
provided that all Permissible Wastes so collected are delivered and disposed ofat the SWH Facility and 
the Town pays the Contractor the fees provided for in this Agreement. 

Nothing in this contract shall require the Town to adopt municipal "flow control" measures or require 
residents who do not utilize the Town's waste collection services to dispose of their waste at the SWH 
Facility. If a resident chooses not to dispose of wastes at the SWH Facility the Town agrees not pay any 
disposal fees of said wastes on behalf of any person, partnership or corporation other than to the 
Contractor. 

4.0 Separation of Wastes: All wastes delivered to the SWH Facility will be deposited separately in their 
individually designated off-loading areas: Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic 
Waste, Green Wood Wastes, Yard Waste, CDD, Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal, Scrap Metal containing Freon 
and/or Mercury, Inert Fill, and Universal Waste. 

5.0 Size Limits: Permissible Wastes delivered to the SWH Facility shall not exceed the following dimensional 
requirements for the requisite wastes: 

5.1 Transfer Solid Waste shall not have any linear dimension greater than seven (7) feet and the sum of the 
length, width and depth shall not exceed fourteen (14) feet. 

5.2 Recyclable Items shall not contain co-mingled containers in a size greater than one ( l) gallon. 

5.3 Green Wood Wastes shall not have a linear dimension greater than eight (8) feet and the sum of the length, 
width and depth shall not exceed sixteen ( 16) feet nor weigh more than one ( 1) ton. 

5.4 CDD shall not have any linear dimension greater than eight (8) feet nor weigh more than one (1) ton. 

Page 6 of 19 



5.5 Tires shall not have a rim diameter greater than eighteen ( 18) inches or such other maximum rim diameter 
as stipulated by Disposal Facility-Tires. 

5.6 Inert Fill shall not have any linear dimension greater than six (6) feet nor weigh more than one (1) ton. 

6.0 Tonnage and Record Keeping: 

6.1 SWH Facility: It is agreed that Transfer Solid Waste deposited at the SWH Facility will be transported to 
the Disposal Facility-MSW as a composite of Transfer Solid Waste generated by the Town in addition to 
tonnages contributed by other sources including, but not limited to, ADD Member municipalities, Acadia 
National Park, and other municipalities in Mount Desert Island region. 

6.2 Guaranteed Annual Tonnage: It is agreed that the Town will deliver to the Contractor the minimum tons 
in each contract year, as shown in "Exhibit A, Guaranteed Minimum Tonnage". Guaranteed Annual 
Tonnages ("GAT") shall equal the sum of the tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items and 
Compostable Organic Waste delivered to the SWH Facility by the Town, its Authorized Agents or its 
Authorized Individuals. 

6.3 Weighing of Tonnage: It is agreed that the following distinct classes of wastes will be weighed, by the 
Contractor, on the Contractor's scales located at the SWH Facility, and that each weighment will be for a 
distinct class of waste: Transfer Solid Waste, Recyclable Items, Compostable Organic Waste, Demolition 
Wood, Green Wood Waste, Stumps, CDD, Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods (may contain 
Freon and/or Mercury), and Inert Fill. All Permissible Waste tonnage shall be weighed by town of origin. 
The Contractor is contemplating adding a second motor truck scale for weighing vehicles delivering 
Permissible Wastes. In the event a second motor truck scale is added to the SWH Facility the Contractor 
will use one motor truck scale to weigh vehicles entering the SWH Facility and the second motor truck 
scale to weigh vehicle exiting the SWH Facility. The difference in the weights obtained from the two 
motor truck scales is the net weight of the Permissible Waste delivered. In the event one of the motor 
truck scales requires inspection, certification, maintenance or is not serviceable for whatever the reason the 
other motor truck scale will be used to weigh vehicles as they enter and exit the SWH Facility. In the 
event both motor truck scales are not serviceable the Contractor will use its best judgment to determine the 
net weight of the loads being delivered to the SWH Facility. The Contactor will use its best efforts to 
correct the problem and have the motor scale(s) operating as soon as possible. 

6.3.1 Transfer Solid Waste Tonnage: Transfer Solid Waste tonnage shall be weighed individually by town of 
origin. The Contractor shall calculate the Town's fraction or percentage of the total Transfer Solid Waste 
tonnage received at the SWH Facility by dividing the tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste received at the 
SWH Facility from the Town during that month by the total Transfer Solid Waste tonnage received at the 
SWH Facility from all the Towns and other sources for that month. That fraction or percentage when 
multiplied by the total Transfer Solid Waste tonnage delivered to Disposal Facility-MSW by the 
Contractor for that month, as substantiated by Disposal Facility-MSW scale tickets, shall be the tonnage 
the Contractor uses to calculate the Town's SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee for that month. 

6.3.2 Recyclable Item Tonnage: Recyclable Items tonnage shall be weighed by Town of origin. 

6.4 Record Keeping: The Contractor shall provide the Town with a record of tonnage received at the SWH 
Facility for wastes the Town is responsible for payment. All charges to the Town will be substantiated by 
the Contractor's scale ticket. Each scale ticket will state the date, the type of waste, the gross, tare and net 
weights. The Contractor shall invoice the Town monthly. The charges stated in said monthly invoices 
shall be substantiated by the Contractor's scale ticket for those Solid Waste items that require weighing. 
The Contractor will additionally provide the ADD with a copy of the ADD member Towns ' monthly 
invoice. Each invoice shall state the date, the monthly tonnage for each Solid Waste item and the amount 
charged. The Contractor will accept all Permissible Waste tonnages delivered to the SWH Facility that 
have been authorized by the Town to the extent that the Permissible Waste tonnage is acceptable to 
Disposal Facility-COD, Disposal Facility-MSW, Disposal Facility-Recycle, Disposal Facility-Tires or 

Page 7 of 19 



Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste and to the extent that the Contractor's DEP permit will allow. The 
scales located at the SWH Facility that are used to weigh Solid Waste accepted at the SWH Facility shall 
be certified by the State of Maine or its authorized representative. The Contractor shall arrange to have its 
scales calibrated annually. Scale certification shall be posted at the scale house located at the SWH 
Facility and may be inspected during normal working hours. 

The Contractor is contemplating computerizing the motor truck scales used to weigh wastes that are 
delivered to the SWH Facility. In the event the contractor does computerize its motor truck scale(s) the 
Town agrees to receive a Scale Ticket Summary report listing scale ticket information (such as Date, 
Waste Type, Ticket#, Time IN, Time OUT, Gross weight, Tare weight, Net weight, Transporter and 
Landowner) with the monthly statement instead of receiving each scale ticket attached to the statement. 
The original scale tickets may be reviewed by the Town at the Contractor's place of business, during 
normal business hours. 

7.0 SWH Facility Services and Procedures: It is understood between the parties that the Contractor will 
accept for disposal at the SWH Facility the Permissible Wastes delivered by the Town, its Authorized 
Agents or Authorized Individuals. The attendant will then direct the transporter of the Permissible Waste 
to the individually designated off-loading areas located within the SWH Facility. 

From time to time new technologies and programs may become available that have the potential to 
enhance or improve how a service is provided under this contract. In the event the Contractor, the Town 
or the ADD has identified such a technology or program that they wish to discuss with the other parties 
that may require a change to the contract to permit the use of said technology or program, the Contractor, 
the Town or the ADD shall inform the other parties of such new technology or program in writing. Upon 
receipt of said written notice the parties agree to discuss the use of such technology or program. If after 
thorough discussion of the proposed use of said technology or program it is decided between the Parties to 
proceed with the use of said technology or program the Contractor shall add the use of said technology or 
program to section 9 Rules and Regulations provided section 10 Payment is not to be adjusted or other 
provisions of this contract are not in conflict with use of said technology or program. However, if section 
10 Payments or other provisions in this contract other than section 9 Rules and Regulations require 
amending; the parties agree to use their best efforts to negotiate an amendment to permit the use of said 
technology or program prior to the Contractor's implementation of the use of said technology or program . 

The purpose of the following descriptions of services and procedures is to illustrate how the Contractor 
intends to perform the services provided for in this contract, however, it is understood between the parties 
that the Contractor shall have the ability to change or alter the procedure in which a particular service is 
performed, if in the opinion of the Contractor that the change or alteration of how the service to be 
performed will allow for a more effective or efficient service or permit the performance of the service in 
compliance with federal, state and municipal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations and the change or 
alteration will not result in an increase in the fees charged the Town. 

7.1 Transfer Solid Waste: Two individually designated areas of the SWH Facility have been reserved for the 
off-loading and storage of Transfer Solid Waste. Transfer Solid Waste containers are in the Recycling 
Center for the acceptance of small individual loads of Transfer Solid Waste. There is at least one 
collection container for the Town. The collection containers shall be weighed and then emptied into the 
Transfer Station on an as-full basis. All large (pickup truck or larger) deliveries of Transfer Solid Waste 
will be directed to the Transfer Station for deposit. The co-mingling of Transfer Solid Waste with another 
Town prior to delivery to the SWH Facility shall not be permitted, except on the day before or after a legal 
holiday, a day when Disposal Facility-MSW is closed or on such other days as the Town permits. When a 
sufficient quantity of Transfer Solid Waste has accumulated in the Transfer Station said Transfer Solid 
Waste will be processed and prepared for shipment to Disposal Facility-MSW. 

7.2 Tires: A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH Facility has been reserved for the disposal 
of tires. Tires shall have rims removed prior to acceptance at the SWH Facility. He Town shall not be 
charged for tire rims. The attendant will weigh the tires and direct the transporter of the Permissible Waste 
to the designated off-loading area. In the event Disposal Facility-Tires or MDEP classifies Tires as Non-

Page 8 of19 



Permissible Transfer Solid Waste items, the Contractor shall not be required to accept Tires at the SWH 
Facility. 

7.3 Recycling: The Disposal Facility-Recycle provides two options for recycling. The Town shall choose 
one (1) either option #1 or option #2. 

7.3.1 Single Sort Recycling (Option# 1): An individually designated area of the SWH Facility has been 
reserved for the collection and storage of Single Sort Recyclable Items. Collection containers for the off
loading of Single Sort Recyclable Items are in the recycling center but are accessed from outside the 
recycling center from the parking lot. On an as-full basis, the collection containers will be weighed on a 
platform scale and a scale ticket will be prepared that indicates the Town of origin, the type of material, 
the gross, tare and net weights. Full containers will then be stored for further processing. When a 
sufficient quantity of Single Sort Recyclable Items has been collected it will then be processed for 
shipment. The Single Sort Recyclable Items shall conform to the acceptable recycling guidelines of the 
Disposal Facility- Recycle. 

7.3.2 Recycling Option #2: Disposal Facility-Recycle has constructed what is called a MRF (Material 
Recovery Facility). A MRF is a materials sorting system that separates recyclable items and reuse items 
from MSW. If Recycling option #2 is chosen all recyclable items need not be sorted from MSW and shall 
be delivered to the SWH Facility in a combined form and then delivered to the Disposal Facility-MSW. 
The Disposal Facility-MSW will then separate the acceptable recyclable items from the MSW Waste 
Stream. In the event the Town chooses Option #2 the Contractor will consider all recyclables delivered to 
the SWH Facility as MSW and manage and charge for them accordingly. 

7.4 Compostable Organic Waste: A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH Facility has been 
reserved for the disposal, processing, curing and storage ofCompostable Organic Waste. The attendant 
will weigh the Compostable Organic Waste and direct the transporter of the Permissible Waste to the 
designated off-loading area. The Compostable Organic Waste will be processed and cured in accordance 
with the DEP regulations. When the Compostable Organic Waste is cured it will be offered for sale as a 
soil amendment. It is understood that the Contractor will compost Compostable Organic Wastes delivered 
to the SWH Facility during that portion of the year (spring through fall) that the DEP permits the 
composting of Compostable Organic Wastes; however, Compostable Organic Wastes delivered to the 
SWH Facility during that portion of the year when composting is not permitted will be considered 
Transfer Solid Waste and directed to the Transfer Solid Waste off-loading area for disposal. 

7.5 Wood Wastes: Two (2) specifically designated off-loading areas of the SWH Facility have been reserved 
for the off-loading, storage and processing of Wood Wastes (green wood and stumps). The attendant will 
weigh the Wood Wastes and direct the transporter to the designated off-loading area. Wood Wastes will 
be stored at the site until a sufficient quantity has accumulated, and then the Wood Wastes will be 
processed and prepared for shipment. There will be no open burning of Wood Wastes at the SWH 
Facility. Demolition Wood is a portion of and is included with CDD. 

7.6 Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD): A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH 
Facility has been reserved for the off-loading, storage, sorting and processing ofCDD. The attendant will 
weigh the CDD and direct the transporter to the designated off-loading area. CDD will be stored at the 
site until a sufficient quantity has accumulated, and then the said waste materials will be processed and 
prepared for shipment to an off-site MDEP licensed CDD disposal facility. 

7.7 Bulky Waste: Bulky Waste is a portion ofCDD and shall be off-loaded at the CDD off-loading area of 
the SWH Facility. The attendant will weigh the Bulky Waste and direct the transporter to the CDD off
loading area. 

7.8 Scrap Metal and White Goods: There are two specifically designated off-loading areas of the SWH 
Facility that have been reserved for the off-loading and storage of Scrap Metal and White Goods. The 
attendant will direct the Authorized Individual delivering Scrap Metal and White Goods to either the 

Page 9 of 19 



specifically designated Freon/Mercury Removal off-loading area or the specifically designated Scrap 
Metal and White Goods off-loading area. 

7.9 Freon/Mercury Removal Off-Loading Area: Scrap Metal and White Goods that contain either Freon or 
Mercury such as refrigerators, freezers, air conditioners, gas stoves etc., that do not have an official sticker 
affixed stating that all Freon and/or Mercury has been properly removed shall be directed to the 
specifically designated off-loading area for Freon/Mercury removal. When sufficient quantities have been 
collected removal of Freon and/or Mercury will be arranged. Once Freon and/or Mercury removal is 
complete said Scrap Metal and White Goods will be removed to the specifically designated Scrap Metal 
and White Goods off-loading area for storage and prepared for shipment. 

7.10 Scrap Metal and White Goods Off-loading Area: The attendant will direct all deliveries of Scrap Metal 
and White Goods not containing Freon and/or Mercury to the Scrap Metal and White Goods off-loading 
area. Scrap Metal and White Goods will be stored at the site until a sufficient quantity of Scrap Metal and 
White Goods has accumulated, and then the Scrap Metal and White Goods will be processed and prepared 
for shipment. 

7.11 Inert Fill: A specifically designated off-loading area of the SWH Facility has been reserved for the off
loading oflnert Fill. The attendant will direct the transporter to the Inert Fill off-loading area. 

7.12 Universal Waste: Universal Waste will be accepted at the SWH Facility on the second Saturday of each 
month between the hours of 9:00 am and I :00 pm for disposal. A specifically designated off-loading area 
of the SWH Facility has been reserved for the off-loading of Universal Waste. The attendant will direct 
the Authorized Individuals delivering Universal Waste to the specifically designated off-loading area. At 
the off-loading area the Contractor or its agent shall accept, weigh if necessary, collect associated 
Universal Waste disposal fees and prepare the Universal Waste for storage and shipment. 

In the event Recycling technologies, systems or programs become available to the Contractor, which in the 
opinion of the Contractor would enhance the Recycling program presently provided, the Contractor may 
employ said Recycling technologies, systems or programs. The Parties agree to negotiate, in good faith, 
an appropriate fee change whenever the Parties have agreed that the Contractor should employ new 
Recycling technologies, systems or programs. 

7.13 Hot Loads: A specifically designated Hot Loads area has been reserved for the off-loading of Hot Loads. 
The attendant will direct the transporter to the Hot Load off-loading area. 

8.0 SWH Facility Hours of Operation: The Contractor agrees to accept Permissible Wastes from the Town, 
its Authorized Agents or its Authorized Individuals for disposal at the SWH Facility in accordance with 
the schedule listed below: 

For the period from May I through October 31 of each Contract Year: 

Monday through Friday: Between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

Saturday: Between 8:00 a.m. and 3:00 p.m. 

For the period from November I through April 30 of each Contract Year: 

Monday through Friday: 
Saturday: 

Between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. 
Between 8:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. 

Sundays and Holidays: The SWH Facility will be closed on Sundays, legal holidays, or when CRM is 
closed. 

Page 10 of 19 



9.0 Rules & Regulations: The Town agrees to observe and conform to such reasonable rules and regulations 
as the Contractor may establish from time to time for the efficient and/or safe use of the SWH Facility. 
Rules and Regulations established by the Contractor for the operation of the SWH Facility shall conform 
to all federal, state and local statutes, regulations and ordinances. In the event the Contractor determines a 
change in rules and regulations is necessary, the Contractor shall provide the Town with written 
notification at least thirty (30) day prior to the date when the new or revised rules and regulations change 
will be implemented. In the event the Town disagrees with the implementation of the proposed rules and 
regulations changes, the Town and the Contractor agree to negotiate in good faith and use their best efforts 
to resolve the disagreement as soon as possible. 

10.0 Payment: It is agreed that the Town will pay the Contractor the fees, as stated in sub-sections listed 
below, for those Permissible Wastes delivered to the SWH Facility by the Town, Its Authorized Agents or 
its Authorized Individuals: 
10.1 Access Fee, 
10.2 SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee, 
10.3 Recycling Center Fees Option #1, 
10.4 Recycling Center Transportation Fee Option #1, 
10.5 Compostable Organic Waste Fee, 
10.6 Tires, 
10.13 Universal Waste Program Fee and 
10.16 Small Load Fee 

It is also agreed that the Town will pay the Contractor the fees for Permissible Wastes delivered to the 
SWH Facility by the Town, as stated in the sub-sections below: 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
10.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 COD Fee, 
l 0.10 Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee, 
l 0.11 Freon/Mercury Removal Fee and 
10.12 Inert Fill Fee 

It is also understood that Authorized Individuals shall pay directly to the Contractor for Permissible Waste 
tonnage that exceeds the tonnage permitted in sub-section l 0.16 Small Load Fee, based upon the 
prevailing fee schedule at the time the Permissible Waste is accepted at the SWH Facility and not 
according to the fee schedule below and that the Town shall have no liability to the Contractor for such 
amounts. The Contractor shall invoice the Town on a monthly basis in accordance with the Pricing and 
Rate Schedule, see "Exhibit A", and the Town shall pay said invoices within thirty (30) days of said 
invoice. In the event the Town does not pay said invoice within thirty (30) days from the date of the 
statement the Town agrees to additionally pay the Contractor eighteen (l 8%) percent per annum until the 
statement amount is received by the Contractor. 

The Town shall additionally pay the Contractor a fuel charge, as calculated in sub-section I 0.17 Fuel 
Charge, said fuel charge shall be added to the fees as stated in sub-sections below: 
10.2 SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee, 
l 0.4 Recycling Center Transportation Fee Option #1, 
10.5 Tires, 
10.6 Demolition Wood, 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
l 0.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 COD Fee, 
10.10 Bulky Waste Fee, 
10.11 Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee. 

Pricing and Rate Schedule for Sections 10.1 through 10.13: See Exhibit "A" attached. 

Page 11 of 19 



10.14 Hot Loads Fee: The Contractor may additionally charge the Town a reasonable fee to defray additional 
expenses involved with disposing of Hot Loads. 

10.15 Escalator: In the event there is an increase or decrease in the United States Department of Labor, Bureau 
of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers for the Northeast Region ("CPI-UNE"), 
the fees listed in sub-sections: 
IO. I Access Fee, 
10.2 SWH Facility Transfer Station Fee, 
10.3 Recycling Center Fees Option #1, 
10.4 Recycling Center Transportation Fee Option #1 , 
10.5 Compostable Organic Waste Fee, 
10.6 Tires, 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
10.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 CDD Fee, 
10.10 Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee, 
IO.I I Freon/Mercury Removal Fee, 
10.12 Inert Fill Fee and 
10.13 Universal Waste Fee 
shall increase or decrease at the beginning of the next Contract Year, after the first Contract Year, by the 
change in said CPI-UNE, between the month of May for the prior year and the month of May for the 
Contract Year. In the event this Agreement is renewed as stated in section I. (Term), it is understood 
between the parties that the fees charged by the Contractor as stated in Section 10.0 Payment will be 
adjusted in accordance with the escalator and that any extension of the term will create new Contract 
Years. 

10.16 Small Load Fee: The Town agrees to pay the Contractor for disposal ofup to two thousand (2000) pounds 
of Demolition Wood, Green Wood, Stumps, CDD, Bulky Waste, Scrap Metal and White Goods (including 
Freon/Mercury removal fee), and Inert Fill, per Developed Parcel delivered to the SWH Facility by any 
Authorized Individual in any calendar year in accordance with the fees as stated in sub-sections: 
10.6 Tires, 
10.7 Green Wood Fee, 
10.8 Stumps Fee, 
10.9 CDD Fee, 
IO.IO Scrap Metal and White Goods Fee, 
IO .11 Freon/Mercury Removal Fee and 
10.12 Inert Fill Fee. 
The Contractor will record the type of waste, the tonnage, the location of the developed parcel from which 
the waste originated and the name of the Authorized Individual delivering said waste to the SWH Facility. 
In the event more than two thousand (2000) pounds of Permissible Wastes are delivered to the SWH 
Facility in any calendar year for a specific developed parcel by an Authorized Individual, said Authorized 
Individual shall pay directly to the Contractor for all the tonnage in excess of the two thousand (2000) 
pounds in accordance with the Contractors then-prevailing fee schedule. 

10.17 Fuel Charge: In addition to the fees required above in this section there shall be a fuel charge as 
calculated below. The chart below states the number gallons of diesel fuel required to transport one load 
of the solid waste one mile, as shown in the payment categories below, from the SWH Facility to the 
designated disposal site and return to the SWH Facility. 

Payment Sub-Sections 
10.17.1 Tractor Trailer Unit w/ a Gross Vehicle Weight of 80,000 pounds or more 
10.17.2 Roll-Off Truck Container Unit w/ a Gross Vehicle Weight of 68,000 pounds or more 

Gallons/mile 
.23 gallons/mile 
.18 gallons/mile 

Below is a list of Round-Trip Mileages from the SWH Facility to the most frequently used Disposal 
Facilities; 

SWH Facility to CRM 104 miles 

Page 12 of 19 



SWH Facility to JRL 
SWH Facility to AIM 
SWH Facility to WM 
SWH Facility to BDS 
SWH Facility to PERC 

138 
116 
232 
232 
104 

It is agreed that the Contractor shall calculate the Fuel Charge per load each month by multiplying the 
gallons/mile, as shown in each of the payment sub-sections (10.17.1 through 10.17.2) listed above, by the 
Diesel Fuel Price per Gallon. The Diesel Fuel Price per Gallon shall be the US On-Road Diesel Fuel Price 
as published for the last week of the month by the Energy Information Administration (EIA) of the 
Department of Energy (New England PADDlA) for the month. The Fuel Charge for the month for each 
payment sub-section (10.17. l through 10.17.2) is then calculated by multiplying the gallons/mile (sub
section 10.17.1 or 10.17.2) by the Round -Trip Mileage. This product equals the number of gallons of 
diesel fuel required to deliver one load of solid waste from the SWH Facility to the Disposal Facility and 
return to the SWH Facility. The number of gallons of diesel fuel is then multiplied by the Diesel Fuel 
Price per Gallon. 

Sample Calculation (Transfer Solid Waste): If the Contractor delivers one (I) Tractor/trailer load of 
Transfer Solid Waste from the SWH Facility to CRM in the month of January and the average price paid 
by the Contractor for US On-Road Diesel Fuel for the month was $2.75 per gallon the Fuel Charge is 
calculated as follows. 

0.23 gallons/mile (10.17.l) X 104 miles= 23.92 gallons diesel fuel 

23.92 gallons X $2.75 price per gallon= $65.78 (Fuel Charge) 

The following fee categories have no fuel charge: 10. l Access Fee, 10.3. l SWH Recycling Center Fee, 
10.4 Compostable Organic Waste, 10.11 Freon/Mercury Removal, 10.12 Inert Fill, 10.13 Universal Waste 
and l O .14 Hot Loads. 

10.18 Surcharge: In the event, the cost of an item, other than fuel , or service that is necessary or required by 
this contract for the performance of this contract increases by more than fifteen (15%) percent in any 
contract year, the Contractor and the Town agree to use their best efforts to negotiate a reasonable increase 
in the rates affected to compensate the Contractor for said increase. The Contractor will provide a copy of 
written documentation of said increase from the provider of the item or service to the Town. 

10.19 Wait Time Fee: The Contractor expects to arrive at the Disposal Facility-MSW and depart the Disposal 
Facility-MSW within one (I) hour. In the event the difference in arrival and departure time is greater than 
one (l) hour the Contractor may additionally charge Twenty-five ($25.00) dollars for each 15-minute 
interval in excess of one (l) hour. The Town shall additionally pay the Contractor the Town's share of the 
Wait Time Fee. The Town's share of the Wait Time Fee shall be calculated in the same manner as the 
Town's share of the total Transfer Solid Waste delivered to the Disposal Facility-MSW for the same 
month the Wait Time Fee occured as described in section l 1.0. 

11.0 Payments to Disposal Facility-MSW: It is agreed by the parties that the Town, and not the Contractor, 
shall pay Disposal Facility-MSW disposal fees directly to Disposal Facility-MSW. The Contractor shall 
prepare monthly statements showing the Town' s share of the weekly invoices that Disposal Facility-MSW 
have provided the Contractor for the Transfer Solid Waste delivered by the Contractor. The statements 
shall be prepared as follows: 

11.1 The Contractor, after receipt of the weekly Disposal Facility-MSW invoices for each month, shall 
calculate the Town's share of the total Transfer Solid Waste and delivered to said Disposal Facilities by 
dividing the tonnage of Transfer Solid Waste received at the SWH Facility from the Town during that 
month by the total Transfer Solid Waste tonnage received at the SWH Facility during said month. That 
fraction or percentage, when multiplied by the total of the invoices from Disposal Facility-MSW for that 
month, will provide the amount owed by the Town each month directly to Disposal Facility-MSW For 

Page 13 of 19 



example: If(a) the Town delivers 100 tons of Transfer Solid Waste in a month, (b) the total Transfer 
Solid Waste received that month is 400 tons, and (c) the Disposal Facility-MSW invoices for the month 
total $18,000-the amount due from the Town to Disposal Facility-MSW that month is $4,500. 

11.1.1 After completing those calculations each month, the Contractor will deliver to the Town, either in person, 
via e-mail or via U.S. Mail, copies of (a) the weekly invoices received from Disposal Facility-MSW, (b) a 
sheet showing the total Transfer Solid Waste received that month, as well as the Transfer Solid Waste 
Tonnage received from the Town that month, and (c) a statement prepared by the Contractor showing the 
calculation of the amounts owed by each town to Disposal Facility-MSW. 

11.1.2 To ensure that the Contractor receives the income under this Contract as anticipated by these parties, the 
Town agrees (a) that all Permissible Wastes collected in the Town on behalfofthe Town shall be 
delivered to the Contractor's SWH Facility, and (b) that the Town shall not pay to the Disposal Facility
CDD, Disposal Facility-MSW, Disposal Facility-Recycle, Disposal Facility-Tires and Disposal Facility
Green Wood Waste disposal fees other than those attributable to Permissible Wastes delivered by the 
Contractor except the Town may pay the Disposal Facility-Recycle for Single Sort Recycling (Option#!) 
delivered by the Town or its authorized agents to the Disposal Facility-Recycle. In the event the Town or 
its authorized agent delivers a condemned recycle load the Town shall contact the Contractor regarding the 
disposition of the condemned load. The Town shall not pay disposal fees for Recycling Option #2 
delivered to the Disposal Facility-Recycle by the Town or its authorized agents. 

11.2 In the event Disposal Facility-MSW refuses to accept delivery of Transfer Solid Waste by the Contractor 
due to non-payment by the Town for its share of the Disposal Facility-MSW fees as calculated above, the 
Town agrees to the following: 

11.2.1 After the Contractor has been notified by Disposal Facility-MSW of its refusal to accept deliveries of 
Transfer Solid Waste from the Town, the Contractor shall verify with the Town of said non-payment and 
inform the Town that deliveries of Transfer Solid Waste from the Town to the SWH Facility will not be 
accepted until the Contractor has been notified by Disposal Facility-MSW that the non-payment issue has 
been resolved between the Town and Disposal Facility-MSW. Upon receipt of said notification the 
Contractor shall resume acceptance of Transfer Solid Waste from the Town at the SWH Facility and 
resume deliveries of Transfer Solid Waste to Disposal Facility-MSW. 

11.2.2 To compensate the Contractor as if the Transfer Solid Waste had been delivered and to additionally 
compensate the Contractor for all other expenses incurred by the Contractor due to the Contractor's refusal 
to accept said delivery of Transfer Solid Waste by Disposal Facility-MSW. Said expenses incurred by the 
Contractor may include but not be limited to additional wait time, transportation or Disposal Facility
MSW disposal fees paid by the Contractor for the Town. 

11.2.3 The Contractor's refusal to accept Transfer Solid Waste from the Town, its Authorized Agents or 
Authorized Individuals at the SWH Facility shall not be considered a breach or default of this contract. 
The Town shall resolve said non-payment issues with Disposal Facility-MSW as soon as possible so the 
Contractor may resume the acceptance of Transfer Solid Waste from the Town, its Authorized Agents and 
Authorized Individuals at the SWH Facility and deliver said Transfer Solid Waste to Disposal Facility
MSW. 

11.2.4 The Town shall use its best efforts to satisfactorily resolve the matter of non-payment with Disposal 
Facility-MSW as soon as possible. 

11.2.S Payments for Disposal Facility-Recycle Option #1: It is agreed by the parties that the Town, and not the 
Contractor, shall pay Disposal Facility-Recycle (option #1) disposal fees directly to Disposal Facility
Recycle .It is agreed by the Parties that the Contractor shall also prepare monthly statements showing the 
Town's share of the weekly invoices that Disposal Facility-Recycle have provided the Contractor for the 
Single Sort Recycling items (Option #1) delivered by the Contractor. The Parties agree to conform to the 

Page 14 of 19 



terms and conditions of sections 11 .0 through 11.2.4 as if it were written for Disposal Facility-Recycle 
(Option #1) . 

12.0 Alternate Disposal Sites. 

12.1 Transfer Solid Waste: In the event CRM the primary Disposal Facility-MSW is not available to the 
Contractor and an alternate Disposal Facility-MSW must be used, the Contractor agrees to use the 
alternate Disposal Facility-MSW as directed by the Town or its agent or designee, including but not 
necessarily limited to the MRC. The Town agrees to additionally pay the contractor ($0.16) per ton per 
mile for the difference in round-trip road miles from the primary Disposal Facility-MSW and to the 
alternate Disposal Facility-MSW. 

12.2 Green Wood Wastes: In the event the primary Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste in not available to 
the contractor, the contractor shall use its best efforts to locate an alternate Disposal Facility-Green Wood 
Waste that accepts Green Wood Wastes at the Green Wood Waste specifications the Contractor presently 
produces. The Town agrees to additionally pay the contractor one ($0. 16) per ton per mile for the 
difference in round-trip road miles from the SWH Facility to the primary Disposal Facility-Green Wood 
Waste and to the alternate Disposal Facility-Green Wood Waste for the Green Wood Waste that Town or 
its authorized agents delivered to the SWH Facility. 

12.3 CDD: In the event the primary Disposal Facility-COD in not available to the contractor, the contractor 
shall use its best efforts to locate an alternate Disposal Facility-COD that accepts CDD at the CDD 
specifications the Contractor presently produces. In the event there are no Disposal Facility-COD located 
within seventy (70) road miles of the SWH Facility, the Contractor shall use its best efforts to locate an 
alternate Disposal Facility-COD. If the alternate Disposal Facility-COD is more than seventy (70) road 
miles from the SWH Facility. The Town agrees to additionally pay the contractor one ($0.16) per ton per 
mile for the difference in round-trip road miles from the SWH Facility to the primary Disposal Facility
CDD and to the alternate Disposal Facility-COD for the CDD that Town or its authorized agents delivered 
to the SWH Facility. 

12.4 No Alternative Site Available: In the event an alternate Disposal Facility for a specific Permissible 
Waste is not found in the State of Maine, the Contractor may combine said Permissible Waste with 
another Permissible Waste to the extent the Alternate Disposal Facility will accept the mixture of the 
Permissible Wastes 

13.0 Insurance. 

13.1 Contractor Insurance: The Contractor, at its own expense, shall maintain the following insurance 
policies during the term of this Agreement and shall provide the Town evidence of coverage as applicable, 
with certificates of coverage of insurance naming the Town as an additional insured for each contract year 
of this contract. 

13.1.1 Commercial General Liability Policy with minimum coverage for completed products and operations in 
the amount of Two Million ($2,000,000.00) dollars for injury or death to one person and One Million 
($1,000,000.00) dollars for any single accident. 

13.1.2 Automobile Liability Policy on all vehicles used to provide services under this Agreement with minimum 
limits of One Million ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence. 

13.1.3 Workers Compensation Policy covering all employees of the Contractor used to provide services under 
this Agreement in accordance with Maine law. 

13.2 Town Insurance: Town shall provide the Contractor with evidence, in the form of certificates of coverage 
of insurance, that the Town making waste deliveries to the SWH Facility has obtained self-insurance risk 
pool coverage or insurance coverage in amounts required by law to cover claims arising out of the Town's 
operation of motor vehicles at the SWH Facility. 

Page 15 of 19 



14.0 

15.0 

15.1 

15.1.1 

15.1.2 

15.1.3 

15.1.4 

15.2 
15.2.1 
15.2.2 

15.2.3 

15.2.4 

15.3 
15.3.1 

15.3.2 

15.3.3 

15.4 
15.4.1 

Subcontract: It is understood that from time to time the Contractor may choose to subcontract portions of 
this Agreement to third parties who are not a party to, and are not bound by, the terms of this Agreement 
to provide the Town with the services contemplated by this Agreement. The Contractor shall at all times 
remain responsible to the Town for performance of this Contract, notwithstanding any such assignment. 

Default; Termination. 

Default by the Contractor: 

The Contractor shall be in default if it fails to provide the Substantive Services required in this Contract, 
unless such failure is caused by (i) a change in laws or regulations of the Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental Protection Agency, or other governmental 
entity or agency, (ii) Force Majeure as provided below, or (iii) eminent domain. 
Substantive Services are only those services that, if they are not performed, would substantially impede 
the Town's ability to dispose of its Permissible Wastes and Recyclable Items. 
If the Town believes that the Contractor is in default, the Town shall provide the Contractor with notice 
itemizing the substantive service(s) that it has failed to provide, and the Town shall invite the Contractor to 
meet and discuss those items. 
If the parties cannot resolve those items to their mutual satisfaction, they shall engage the services of a 
disinterested alternative dispute resolution arbitrator who will render a binding ruling as to whether the 
Contractor has failed to provide Substantive Services and is in default; 

Default by the Towns: 
The Town shall be in default ifit fails to meet its Substantive Obligations required under this Contract. 
Substantive Obligations include failure to pay to the Contractor any sums owed to it, as well as those 
obligations that would substantially impede the Contractor's ability to manage the SWH Facility or to 
deliver Transfer Solid Waste to Disposal Facility-MSW and other Solid Waste disposal facilities used by 
the Contractor. 
If the Contractor believes the Town is in default, the Contractor shall provide the Town with notice 
itemizing the substantive obligations that it has failed to perform, and the Contractor shall invite the 
representative of the Town to meet and discuss those items. 
If the parties cannot resolve those items to their mutual satisfaction, they shall engage the services of a 
disinterested alternative dispute resolution arbitrator who will render a binding ruling as to whether the 
Town has failed to perform Substantive Obligations and is in default; 

Remedies Available to the Town: 
If the Contractor is in default as provided above, for a reason not caused by (i) a change in laws or 
regulations of the Maine Department of Environmental Protection, the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, or any other governmental entity or agency, (ii) Force Majeure, or (iii) eminent 
domain, the Contractor shall have thirty (30) days to cure the default found by the arbitrator or agreed by 
the parties. 
If the Contractor cannot cure the default within thirty (30) days, but will be able to do so within the 
hundred twenty (120) days, the Town may enter into a temporary agreement with another person or entity 
to provide those services until the Contractor has cured that default - and during that period of time the 
Town shall not be obligated to pay the Contractor for the Substantive Service(s) that it is unable to 
perform. 
If the Contractor cannot cure that default within one hundred twenty (120) days, the Town shall have the 
right to terminate this Contract. Termination of this Contract is the Town's sole remedy and upon 
termination the parties' obligations to each other shall end, provided that the Town has paid all sums owed 
to the Contractor. 

Remedies Available to the Contractor: 
If the Town is in default as provided above, the Town shall have thirty (30) days to cure the default found 
by the arbitrator or agreed by the parties. 

Page 16 of 19 



15.4.2 If the Town does not cure that default within thirty (30) days, the Contractor may have all remedies 
available under law or equity, including but not limited to a suit for injunctive relief and/or for monetary 
damages, attorney fees and costs. 

15.4.3 If the Town does not cure that default within thirty (30) days, the Contractor shall have the option of also 
terminating this Contract and/or bringing an action for breach of contract with remedies as provided above 
and by law. 

16.0 Force Majeure. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any failure or delay in performance of this 
Agreement which may be due in whole or in part to any contingency, delay, failure, cause or occurrence of 
any act of nature beyond the reasonable control of that party, whether or not it is presently occurring or 
occurs in the future, including without limiting the generality of the foregoing: fire, explosion, gaseous 
emissions, earthquake, storm, flood, or other adverse weather conditions, accident involving or breakdown 
of machinery or facility involved in the performance of this Agreement from any cause whatsoever, 
strike, lockout, combination of workmen or other labor difficulties (from whatever cause arising, and 
whether or not the demands of the employees are reasonable or within the parties power to grant), war, 
insurrection, riot, act of God or the public enemy, law, act, proclamation, judgment, or decree of a court of 
competent jurisdiction. In any such event, the party shall use its best efforts to resume performance of its 
obligations as soon as possible 

17.0 Miscellaneous. 

17.1 Effective Date. By signing this Agreement the Town agrees that the voters of the Town at a town 
meeting have voted in the affirmative to accept an article that authorized their Board of Selectmen to enter 
into a Solid Waste Contract with the Contractor under the terms and condition as stipulated herein. 

17.2 Notices. All notices required by or useful under the terms of this Agreement shall be sufficiently given or 
delivered if it is dispatched by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or 
delivered personally, to the following addresses, or to such other addresses as the parties may designate in 
writing: 

If to the Contractor: 

Jfto Town: 

E.M.R., Inc. 
Attn: Ben C. Worcester, III 
P.O. Box 787 
Southwest Harbor, ME 04679 

Town of Mount Desert 
P. 0. Box 248 
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662 

17.3 Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and fully 
supersedes all other prior, contemporaneous understandings or agreements, written or oral, between the 
Contractor and the Town relating to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby. The waiver in any particular instance of any term or condition of this Agreement or 
any breach thereof shall not constitute a waiver of such term or condition or any breach thereof in any 
other instance. 

17 .4 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only with the concurring written consent of both of the 
parties hereto. The Town's Board of Selectmen shall, after due notice of and vote at a public meeting, 
have authority to negotiate and consent to any amendment to the terms of this Agreement. 

17.5 Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions of the Agreement shall for any reason be held to 
be illegal or invalid, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement and 
this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal or invalid provision had not been 
contained herein. 

Page 17 of 19 



17.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so 
executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the 
same Agreement. . 

17.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed according to the laws of the State of 
Maine. 

17.8 Venue for Suits. With the exception of paragraph 16.0 above, any action or suit by either party to enforce 
any of the terms, conditions, covenants or obligations of this Agreement must be brought, if at all, in the 
District or Superior Courts of Hancock County, Maine, and otherwise shall be barred. 

17.9 Immunities Retained. Nothing in this agreement shall be deemed in any manner or for any purpose to 
limit, waive or impair any immunity from judgment or suit or limitation on damages presently enjoyed by 
the Town under provisions of the Maine Tort Claims Act, 14 MRSA section 8101 et seq., as amended, or 
other provisions of law. 

17.10 No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a joint venture, partnership, or 
similar association between the Contractor and the Town, or to impose any shared liabilities for legal 
claims beyond those existing by law. 

17.11 Attorneys' Fees. If any action, at law or in equity, is necessary to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys' and experts' fees, costs and necessary 
disbursements from the non-successful Party in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled. 

17.12 Parties in Interest. Nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended, or shall be construed to 
confer upon any person, firm, or corporation, other than the Contractor and the Town any right, remedy or 
claim under or by reason of this Agreement, it being intended that this Agreement shall be for the sole and 
exclusive benefit of the Contractor and the Town. 

17.13 Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned without the prior written consent of the Contractor 
and Town; however such a request shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The Town, the Contractor and the Selectmen of the Towns or their authorized 
representative have executed this agreement in duplicate originals as of the date first written above. 

Signature on next Page 

Remainder of Page Blank 

Page 18 of 19 



Recycling Options: (Check or Circle one) 
l._7.3.1 Single Sort Recycling (Option #1) 
2._7_).2 Recycling Option #2 
3. _k:~Jfone 

Signature Page 

E.M.R., INC. 

(By) ~iu~?25 
It 's Vice President 

Town of Mount Desert 

Witness 

Wi~s~\~ll 

(By) 

(By) 

P=" S ctmen 

rv 
Selectmen 

Witness -. \ 

Witn£\;._ • \pa,~ (By)~ 
ect en 

t~,LboU,ll 
Witness .., \ 

Page 19 of 19 



' i 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

  





M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

R
ev

is
ed

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

1/
29

/2
02

4
Ac

tu
al

Cu
rr

en
t  

 
An

tic
ip

at
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

  
$

%
 

Re
ce

ip
ts

Bu
dg

et
Re

ce
ip

ts
Bu

dg
et

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 
00

00
-0

00
0-

45
00

00
C

ar
ry

ov
er

85
0,

44
9

   
   

   
   

  
56

5,
84

2
   

   
   

  
55

2,
56

7
   

   
   

   
52

,2
86

   
   

   
   

   
(5

13
,5

56
)

   
   

   
 

-9
0.

76
%

Sa
vi

ng
 $

10
0K

Re
ve

nu
es

00
00

-0
00

0-
41

31
10

Tu
iti

on
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
 

00
00

-0
00

0-
41

99
08

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-0

00
0-

45
20

00
Fu

nd
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 fr
om

 R
es

er
ve

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-0

00
0-

43
15

00
N

BC
T 

St
ip

en
d 

R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-0

00
0-

43
12

10
St

at
e 

Ag
en

cy
 C

lie
nt

 R
ev

en
ue

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

00
00

-0
00

0-
43

11
10

St
at

e 
Su

bs
id

y
29

9,
02

6
   

   
   

   
  

26
0,

00
0

   
   

   
  

26
4,

93
8

   
   

   
   

31
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
19

.2
3%

Pr
el

im
. P

rin
to

ut
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ax
es

00
00

-0
00

0-
41

21
30

To
w

n 
Ap

pr
op

ria
tio

n
3,

82
8,

45
6

   
   

   
  

4,
37

9,
14

2
   

   
  

4,
37

9,
14

2
   

   
   

5,
15

9,
07

8
   

   
   

 
77

9,
93

6
   

   
   

   
17

.8
1%

Ar
tic

le
s 

86
 &

 8
8

EP
S 

& 
Ad

di
tio

na
 

 
 

 
5,

15
9,

07
8

$ 
   

   
 

00
00

-0
00

0-
41

21
20

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 A
pp

ro
pr

.
28

5,
15

4
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

Ar
tic

le
 8

7
De

bt
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

pp
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s
5,

26
9,

08
5

   
   

   
  

5,
20

4,
98

4
   

   
  

5,
19

6,
64

7
   

   
   

5,
52

1,
36

4
   

   
   

 
31

6,
38

0
   

   
   

   
6.

08
%

To
ta

l T
ow

n 
Ap

pr
op

ria
tio

n 
5,

15
9,

07
8

$ 
   

 
77

9,
93

6
$ 

   
   

17
.8

1%
$3

2.
94

Di
ff 

in
 T

ax
es

/1
00

,0
00

 V
al

ua
tio

n

Pr
oj

. B
al

an
ce

6/
30

/2
02

4
R

es
er

ve
s:

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

15
4,

58
7

$ 
   

   
   

  
Bu

s
45

,7
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n

12
3,

43
3

$ 
   

   
   

  

To
ta

l S
al

ar
ie

s 
& 

Be
ne

fit
s

3,
55

8,
26

7
$ 

   
3,

83
1,

21
2

$ 
   

 
%

 o
f B

ud
ge

t
68

.3
6%

69
.3

9%



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

 
Ac

tu
al

Cu
rr

en
t  

 
An

tic
ip

at
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

  
$

%
R

eg
ul

ar
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
Re

gu
la

r I
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

11
00

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r's

 S
al

ar
ie

s:
  3

-8
94

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
  

95
1,

54
6

   
   

   
  

96
7,

51
7

   
   

   
   

95
8,

18
3

   
   

   
   

 
6,

63
7

   
   

   
   

   
0.

70
%

 
11

00
-1

00
0-

51
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 S

al
ar

ie
s/

M
TS

S
26

,4
21

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
1,

29
3

   
   

   
  

13
6,

68
3

   
   

   
   

20
2,

14
9

   
   

   
   

 
70

,8
56

   
   

   
   

  
53

.9
7%

4 
Ed

. T
ec

hs
 &

 M
TS

S
11

00
-1

00
0-

51
23

00
Su

bs
tit

ut
es

59
,8

27
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,1
25

   
   

   
   

 
28

,1
25

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
1,

87
5

   
   

   
   

   
6.

67
%

$1
25

/d
ay

 
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- 3

-8
 T

ea
ch

er
s

50
,7

85
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

,3
32

   
   

   
   

 
57

,2
77

   
   

   
   

  
56

,7
25

   
   

   
   

   
39

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

70
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

02
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- E
d.

 T
ec

hs
1,

40
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

8,
09

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,9
67

   
   

   
   

   
3,

46
7

   
   

   
   

   
40

.7
9%

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

03
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- S
ub

s
2,

70
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
15

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
15

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

29
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
74

%
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S:

 T
ch

rs
. 3

-8
19

9,
24

2
   

   
   

   
  

21
5,

79
7

   
   

   
  

18
8,

09
1

   
   

   
   

17
8,

86
6

   
   

   
   

 
(3

6,
93

1)
   

   
   

   
-1

7.
11

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

12
00

BC
/B

S:
 E

d.
 T

ec
hs

.
12

,9
38

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
,5

89
   

   
   

   
 

31
,9

00
   

   
   

   
  

60
,6

24
   

   
   

   
   

29
,0

35
   

   
   

   
  

91
.9

1%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

11
01

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e 

& 
Fe

es
10

,8
74

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
,8

80
   

   
   

   
 

14
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

16
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

1,
62

0
   

   
   

   
   

10
.8

9%
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
51

00
Tu

iti
on

 R
ei

m
b.

: T
ax

ab
le

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

36
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

21
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

14
3.

33
%

gr
ad

ua
te

 c
ou

rs
es

11
00

-1
00

0-
52

51
01

Tu
iti

on
 R

ei
m

b.
: N

on
-T

ax
.

3,
58

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
62

00
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
11

00
-1

00
0-

52
71

00
W

or
ke

r's
 C

om
p.

 In
su

ra
nc

e
27

,4
80

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

28
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

ba
se

d 
on

 p
ay

ro
ll 

& 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

m
od

ifi
er

11
00

-2
19

0-
53

40
00

Pr
of

. S
vc

s.
: 5

04
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

11
00

-1
00

0-
54

30
00

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

: E
qu

ip
. R

ep
ai

r
46

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
.0

0%
 

11
00

-1
00

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l: 

 3
-8

2,
03

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

.2
2%

11
00

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

Te
ac

hi
ng

 S
up

pl
ie

s:
  3

-8
26

,4
89

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

33
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

33
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
11

00
-1

00
0-

56
40

00
Te

xt
bo

ok
s,

 T
ra

de
 B

ks
:  

3-
8

3,
03

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
6,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,6
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

-6
7.

65
%

11
00

-1
00

0-
56

42
00

Pr
of

. B
oo

ks
 &

 P
er

io
di

ca
ls

:  
3-

8
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
14

0.
00

%
11

00
-1

00
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

 o
f E

qu
ip

.: 
 3

-8
2,

05
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
9,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

82
.0

0%
in

cl
ud

es
 fu

rn
itu

re
 m

on
ey

11
00

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s,
 F

ee
s,

 C
on

f.:
  3

-8
2,

54
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,4

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-3

1.
11

%
11

00
-1

00
0-

58
90

05
Sp

ec
ia

l A
ca

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
s

5,
89

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Ar

ts
 W

ee
k/

SE
A 

C
am

p
11

00
-1

00
0-

59
00

00
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
(P

er
so

nn
el

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
14

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

11
20

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r S

al
: K

-2
23

6,
94

8
   

   
   

   
  

26
1,

44
5

   
   

   
  

23
7,

21
2

   
   

   
   

32
5,

71
2

   
   

   
   

 
64

,2
67

   
   

   
   

  
24

.5
8%

4 
Tc

hr
s 

-K
-2

 p
lu

s 
Li

te
ra

cy
 S

pe
c.

11
20

-1
00

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- K
-2

 T
ea

ch
er

s
12

,9
49

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,4

78
   

   
   

   
 

14
,0

42
   

   
   

   
  

19
,2

82
   

   
   

   
   

3,
80

4
   

   
   

   
   

24
.5

8%
11

20
-1

00
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S:

 K
-2

 T
ea

ch
er

s
51

,5
71

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
,1

71
   

   
   

   
 

66
,4

95
   

   
   

   
  

98
,6

79
   

   
   

   
   

38
,5

08
   

   
   

   
  

64
.0

0%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

3,
76

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
4,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
33

.3
3%

11
20

-1
00

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l: 

 K
-2

42
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

.0
0%

11
20

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

Te
ac

hi
ng

 S
up

pl
ie

s:
  K

-2
6,

77
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
,3

50
)

   
   

   
   

  
-6

6.
84

%
 

11
20

-1
00

0-
56

40
00

Te
xt

bo
ok

s,
 T

ra
de

 B
ks

:  
K-

2
1,

94
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,1

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-5

5.
00

%
11

20
-1

00
0-

56
42

00
Pr

of
. B

oo
ks

 &
 P

er
io

di
ca

ls
:  

K-
2

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
50

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-3

3.
33

%
11

20
-1

00
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

 o
f E

qu
ip

.: 
 K

-2
81

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

28
2.

35
%

2n
d 

Ki
nd

er
ga

rte
n 

C
la

ss
ro

om
11

20
-1

00
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s,

 F
ee

s,
 C

on
f.:

  K
-2

70
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

27
5

   
   

   
   

   
1,

27
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

75
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-2
1.

57
%



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

 
Ac

tu
al

Cu
rr

en
t  

 
An

tic
ip

at
ed

Pr
op

os
ed

  
$

%
R

eg
ul

ar
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n

11
21

-1
00

0-
58

90
00

Ea
rly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

C
en

te
r

26
,9

25
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
C

os
t o

f c
re

at
in

g 
ea

rly
 c

hi
ld

ho
od

 le
ar

ni
ng

 c
en

te
r

11
21

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r S

al
: P

re
-K

48
,9

85
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
98

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
98

   
   

   
   

  
54

,4
46

   
   

   
   

   
4,

34
8

   
   

   
   

   
8.

68
%

I P
re

-K
 T

ch
r

11
21

-1
00

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- P
re

-K
 T

ea
ch

er
s

2,
66

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

96
6

   
   

   
   

   
2,

96
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
22

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
8.

66
%

11
21

-1
00

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S:
 P

re
-K

 T
ea

ch
er

s
18

,2
14

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
 

23
,2

13
   

   
   

   
  

25
,5

34
   

   
   

   
   

1,
44

5
   

   
   

   
   

6.
00

%
11

21
-1

00
0-

51
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 S

al
ar

y:
 P

re
-K

23
,8

91
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

,4
59

   
   

   
   

 
44

,8
39

   
   

   
   

  
29

,6
52

   
   

   
   

   
3,

19
3

   
   

   
   

   
12

.0
7%

1 
Pr

e-
K 

ET
11

21
-1

00
0-

52
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 B

en
ef

its
: P

re
-K

1,
19

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

56
7

   
   

   
   

   
2,

65
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
75

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

.0
0%

11
21

-1
00

0-
52

12
00

Ed
. T

ec
h.

 B
C

/B
S:

 P
re

-K
17

,4
48

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
 

8,
46

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,5
34

   
   

   
   

   
1,

44
5

   
   

   
   

   
6.

00
%

11
21

-1
00

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l: 

Pr
e-

K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

.0
0%

11
21

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

Te
ac

hi
ng

 S
up

pl
ie

s:
 P

re
-K

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(8
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-4

0.
00

%
11

21
-1

00
0-

56
40

00
Te

xt
bo

ok
s,

 T
ra

de
 B

ks
:P

re
-K

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(4
,9

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-9

8.
00

%
11

21
-1

00
0-

57
30

00
Pu

rc
h 

of
 E

qu
ip

: P
re

-K
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

.0
0%

11
21

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s,
 F

ee
s,

 C
on

f: 
Pr

e-
K

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
25

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

0%

29
00

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

G
ift

ed
 a

nd
 T

al
en

te
d 

C
oo

rd
.

14
,7

97
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,8
02

   
   

   
   

 
6,

12
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,3

47
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,4

55
)

   
   

   
   

  
-1

1.
37

%
20

%
 p

os
iti

on
29

00
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
R

et
ire

./M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- G

 &
 T

78
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
36

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(8

6)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-1
1.

35
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S:
 G

 &
 T

2,
99

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

10
8

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,1
08

)
   

   
   

   
  

-6
7.

82
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(3

20
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
00

.0
0%

29
00

-1
00

0-
56

10
00

G
 &

 T
: T

ea
ch

in
g 

Su
pp

lie
s

55
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
29

00
-1

00
0-

56
10

01
G

 &
 T

: T
es

tin
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
29

00
-1

00
0-

56
40

00
G

 &
 T

: T
ex

ts
 &

 T
ra

de
 B

oo
ks

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
57

30
00

G
 &

 T
: E

qu
ip

m
en

t
13

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

29
00

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

G
 &

 T
: D

ue
s,

 F
ee

s,
 C

on
f.

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

To
ta

l R
eg

ul
ar

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

1,
85

7,
26

3
   

   
   

  
2,

07
1,

93
7

   
   

  
2,

03
5,

18
1

   
   

   
2,

27
7,

44
5

   
   

   
 

20
5,

50
8

   
   

   
   

9.
92

%
Ar

tic
le

 7
5

Re
gu

la
r I

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
2,

27
7,

44
5

$ 
   

   
 



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

Ac
tu

al
Cu

rr
en

t  
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

Sp
ec

ia
l E

du
ca

tio
n

22
00

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Te
ac

he
r S

al
ar

ie
s:

 R
es

rc
e 

R
m

.
92

,8
76

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
,7

99
   

   
   

   
 

10
3,

06
6

   
   

   
   

11
1,

40
5

   
   

   
   

 
13

,6
06

   
   

   
   

  
13

.9
1%

2 
Te

ac
he

rs
21

00
-1

00
0-

51
02

00
Ed

. T
ec

h.
 S

al
ar

ie
s

13
8,

91
6

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
00

0
   

   
   

  
15

5,
72

9
   

   
   

   
14

8,
41

6
   

   
   

   
 

(2
6,

58
4)

   
   

   
   

-1
5.

19
%

5 
Ed

. T
ec

hs
22

00
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
R

et
ire

./M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- T

ea
ch

er
s

4,
99

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

79
0

   
   

   
   

   
6,

10
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
59

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

.9
0%

21
00

-1
00

0-
52

02
00

R
et

ire
./ 

M
ed

ic
ar

e 
- E

d.
 T

ec
hs

.
8,

55
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,5

00
   

   
   

   
 

9,
21

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,2
88

   
   

   
   

   
(2

12
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-2
.0

2%
22

00
-1

00
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S:

 T
ea

ch
er

s
18

,2
86

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,5

63
   

   
   

   
 

38
,1

89
   

   
   

   
  

42
,0

08
   

   
   

   
   

24
,4

45
   

   
   

   
  

13
9.

18
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
21

00
-1

00
0-

52
12

00
BC

/B
S:

 E
d.

 T
ec

hs
.

57
,5

61
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
50

,1
37

   
   

   
   

  
70

,3
76

   
   

   
   

   
(2

4,
62

4)
   

   
   

   
-2

5.
92

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

3,
71

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
7,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,4
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

-2
5.

00
%

22
00

-1
00

0-
54

30
00

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

: E
qu

ip
. R

ep
ai

r
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

55
60

00
Tu

iti
on

: S
p.

 E
d.

/R
es

er
ve

 T
rn

sf
2,

40
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

AO
S 

re
se

rv
e 

at
 m

ax
 a

m
ou

nt
22

00
-1

00
0-

59
00

1
Tr

an
sf

 to
 L

oc
al

 R
es

er
ve

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Ad

di
tio

n 
to

 L
oc

al
 S

pe
c 

Ed
 R

es
er

ve
22

00
-1

00
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

56
10

00
R

es
. R

m
.: 

Te
ac

h.
 S

up
pl

ie
s

3,
48

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
In

cl
. O

T/
PT

 S
up

pl
ie

s
22

00
-1

00
0-

56
10

01
R

es
. R

m
.: 

Te
st

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

ls
21

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

22
00

-1
00

0-
56

40
00

Te
xt

bo
ok

s 
& 

Tr
ad

e 
Bo

ok
s

29
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
3,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

56
50

00
Te

ch
 R

el
at

ed
 S

of
tw

ar
e

1,
27

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
22

00
-1

00
0-

57
30

00
R

es
. R

m
.:P

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 E

qu
ip

.
74

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

In
cl

. O
T/

PT
 E

qu
ip

22
00

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

R
es

. R
m

.:D
ue

s,
 F

ee
s,

 C
on

f.
1,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

25
00

-2
33

0-
53

44
00

As
se

ss
m

en
t: 

Sp
ec

. S
vc

s.
82

,4
62

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
,7

10
   

   
   

   
 

90
,7

10
   

   
   

   
  

94
,2

82
   

   
   

   
   

3,
57

2
   

   
   

   
   

3.
94

%
fix

ed
 to

 a
 d

is
tri

ct
 fo

rm
ul

a
25

00
-2

33
0-

58
12

00
D

ue
s 

Fe
es

 - 
Sa

m
e 

G
oa

l
91

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

95
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

95
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

28
00

-2
14

0-
53

44
00

Pr
of

. S
vc

s.
: T

he
ra

py
/C

ou
ns

el
.

55
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,5
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

-5
0.

00
%

Fo
r O

ut
si

de
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
/C

ou
ns

el
in

g
28

00
-2

15
0-

51
01

00
Te

ac
he

r S
al

ar
ie

s:
 S

pe
ec

h
78

,8
54

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
,1

65
   

   
   

   
 

40
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

64
,7

78
   

   
   

   
   

(1
5,

38
7)

   
   

   
   

-1
9.

19
%

28
00

-2
15

0-
51

01
01

Sa
la

ry
: I

nt
er

pr
et

er
59

,6
34

   
   

   
   

   
 

63
,4

44
   

   
   

   
 

62
,0

20
   

   
   

   
  

66
,1

13
   

   
   

   
   

2,
66

9
   

   
   

   
   

4.
21

%
 

28
00

-2
15

0-
52

01
00

R
et

ire
./M

ed
ic

ar
e 

- S
pe

ec
h

3,
12

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

74
6

   
   

   
   

   
59

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
83

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
(9

11
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
9.

20
%

28
00

-2
15

0-
52

01
01

R
et

ire
/M

ed
ic

ar
e 

- I
nt

er
pr

et
er

3,
15

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

75
6

   
   

   
   

   
3,

67
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
91

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
4.

21
%

28
00

-2
15

0-
52

11
00

BC
/B

S:
 S

pe
ec

h
7,

98
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

8,
78

1
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

,5
34

   
   

   
   

   
16

,7
53

   
   

   
   

  
19

0.
79

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

28
00

-2
15

0-
52

11
01

BC
/B

S:
 In

te
rp

re
te

r
21

,8
99

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
 

23
,2

13
   

   
   

   
  

25
,5

34
   

   
   

   
   

1,
44

5
   

   
   

   
   

6.
00

%
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
2,

83
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

30
0.

00
%

28
00

-2
15

0-
56

10
00

Sp
ee

ch
: T

ea
ch

in
g 

Su
pp

lie
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

28
00

-2
15

0-
56

10
01

Sp
ee

ch
: T

es
tin

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

18
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Te

st
in

g 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 n
ee

de
d

28
00

-2
15

0-
57

30
00

Sp
ee

ch
: E

qu
ip

m
en

t
3,

01
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

R
em

ot
e 

m
ic

s
28

00
-2

15
0-

58
10

00
Sp

ee
ch

: D
ue

s/
Fe

es
/C

on
f.

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

28
00

-2
46

0-
53

44
00

O
th

er
 P

ro
f S

vc
s-

O
T

15
,7

51
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
(5

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

-1
6.

67
%

 
28

00
-2

18
0-

53
44

00
O

th
er

 P
ro

f S
vc

s-
PT

8,
38

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
12

,5
00

   
   

   
   

  
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

28
00

-2
15

0-
53

44
00

O
th

er
 P

ro
f S

vc
s 

- S
pe

ec
h/

D
ot

.c
o

5,
71

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

00
%

28
10

-1
00

0-
51

01
00

Sp
ec

. E
d.

 : 
Su

m
m

. S
ch

l.
10

,9
33

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

20
0.

00
%

sp
ec

ia
liz

ed
 s

um
m

er
 s

ch
oo

l
28

10
-1

00
0-

52
01

00
M

ed
ic

ar
e 

- S
um

m
. S

ch
l.

77
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
59

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
59

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

0.
00

%
To

ta
l S

pe
ci

al
 E

du
ca

tio
n

66
0,

67
9

   
   

   
   

  
78

1,
78

9
   

   
   

  
70

5,
73

9
   

   
   

   
78

1,
36

6
   

   
   

   
 

(4
23

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-0

.0
5%

Ar
tic

le
 7

6
Sp

ec
ia

l E
du

ca
tio

n
78

1,
36

6
$ 

   
   

   
 



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

Ac
tu

al
Cu

rr
en

t  
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

Ar
tic

le
 7

7
Ca

re
er

 &
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 E
du

ca
tio

n
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
O

th
er

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

Co
-C

ur
ric

ul
ar

 
91

00
-1

00
0-

51
50

00
C

o-
C

ur
ric

ul
ar

 S
tip

en
ds

18
,7

94
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
26

,4
05

   
   

   
   

  
27

,1
70

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,8
30

)
   

   
   

   
  

-9
.4

3%
91

00
-1

00
0-

52
00

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- C

o-
C

ur
ric

. S
tip

en
ds

1,
04

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

56
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
62

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

75
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-9
.7

2%
91

00
-1

00
0-

58
90

00
W

el
ln

es
s 

In
ce

nt
iv

es
2,

02
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

91
00

-1
00

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s 
/ F

ee
s 

/ C
on

fe
re

nc
es

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
#D

IV
/0

!
C

o-
C

ur
ric

. F
ie

ld
 T

rip
s

91
00

-2
70

0-
55

10
00

C
o-

C
ur

ric
: T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(5
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
00

%
92

00
-1

00
0-

51
50

00
Ex

tra
-C

ur
ric

.: 
At

hl
et

ic
 S

tip
en

d
32

,8
74

   
   

   
   

   
 

46
,5

00
   

   
   

   
 

46
,4

84
   

   
   

   
  

50
,1

38
   

   
   

   
   

3,
63

8
   

   
   

   
   

7.
82

%
 

92
00

-1
00

0-
51

50
01

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

: O
ffi

ci
al

s,
 e

tc
.

5,
74

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
18

.1
8%

92
00

-1
00

0-
52

00
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- E
xt

ra
-C

ur
ric

.
1,

97
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

3,
25

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

51
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
29

%
92

00
-1

00
0-

52
00

01
Be

ne
fit

s-
O

ffi
ci

al
s

29
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
92

00
-1

00
0-

55
80

00
At

hl
et

ic
-S

ta
ff 

Tr
av

el
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
92

00
-1

00
0-

56
00

00
Su

pp
lie

s
1,

93
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
92

00
-1

00
0-

56
05

00
Eq

ui
pm

en
t &

 U
ni

fo
rm

s
1,

38
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

 
92

00
-1

00
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
40

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

To
ta

l C
o-

C
ur

ric
ul

ar
66

,2
08

   
   

   
   

   
 

94
,4

50
   

   
   

   
 

90
,3

57
   

   
   

   
  

99
,1

93
   

   
   

   
   

4,
74

3
   

   
   

   
   

5.
02

%
Su

m
m

er
 S

ch
oo

l  
43

00
-1

00
0-

51
01

00
Su

m
m

er
 S

ch
oo

l/H
om

ew
or

k 
C

lu
b

7,
18

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
(7

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

-4
1.

18
%

in
cl

ud
es

 s
um

m
er

 s
ch

oo
l a

nd
 h

om
ew

or
k 

cl
ub

 s
ta

ffi
ng

43
00

-1
00

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- S
um

m
er

 S
ch

oo
l

37
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

00
6

   
   

   
   

   
88

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

59
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

14
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-4
1.

15
%

To
ta

l S
um

m
er

 S
ch

oo
l

7,
56

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
18

,0
06

   
   

   
   

 
15

,8
88

   
   

   
   

  
10

,5
92

   
   

   
   

   
(7

,4
14

)
   

   
   

   
  

-4
1.

18
%

Ar
tic

le
 7

8
O

th
er

 In
st

ru
ct

io
n

10
9,

78
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
St

ud
en

t &
 S

ta
ff 

Su
pp

or
t

G
ui

da
nc

e
 

00
00

-2
12

0-
51

01
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
ke

r
63

,5
02

   
   

   
   

   
 

67
,4

39
   

   
   

   
 

75
,3

94
   

   
   

   
  

81
,0

33
   

   
   

   
   

13
,5

94
   

   
   

   
  

20
.1

6%
 

00
00

-2
12

0-
52

01
00

R
et

ire
./M

ed
ic

ar
e

3,
29

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

99
3

   
   

   
   

   
4,

46
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
79

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

.1
4%

00
00

-2
12

0-
52

11
00

Bl
ue

 C
ro

ss
/B

lu
e 

Sh
ie

ld
21

,8
99

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
 

23
,2

13
   

   
   

   
  

25
,5

34
   

   
   

   
   

1,
44

5
   

   
   

   
   

6.
00

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

12
0-

56
10

00
Su

pp
lie

s
1,

00
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
12

0-
56

40
00

Bo
ok

s 
& 

Pe
rio

di
ca

ls
11

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
12

0-
57

30
00

Eq
ui

pm
en

t  
72

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(7
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

  
-7

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

12
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s,

 F
ee

s,
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e
35

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

To
ta

l G
ui

da
nc

e
91

,6
87

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
,9

71
   

   
   

   
 

10
7,

52
0

   
   

   
   

11
5,

11
4

   
   

   
   

 
15

,1
43

   
   

   
   

  
15

.1
5%

He
al

th
 S

er
vi

ce
s

 
 

 
00

00
-2

13
0-

51
01

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 N

ur
se

73
,0

80
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

,9
15

   
   

   
   

 
75

,9
15

   
   

   
   

  
81

,1
99

   
   

   
   

   
5,

28
4

   
   

   
   

   
6.

96
%

 
00

00
-2

13
0-

52
01

00
R

et
ire

./M
ed

ic
ar

e
3,

94
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
49

4
   

   
   

   
   

4,
49

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

80
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
96

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

52
11

00
Bl

ue
 C

ro
ss

 / 
Bl

ue
 S

hi
el

d
17

,9
92

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,7

92
   

   
   

   
 

19
,0

72
   

   
   

   
  

20
,9

80
   

   
   

   
   

1,
18

8
   

   
   

   
   

6.
00

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

1,
85

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

53
40

00
Ph

ys
ic

ia
n 

& 
Ph

ys
ic

al
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
13

0-
54

30
00

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

:E
qu

ip
. R

ep
ai

r
14

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
13

0-
55

20
0

M
al

pr
ac

tic
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
11

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
.6

4%
00

00
-2

13
0-

55
80

00
Tr

av
el

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
13

0-
56

00
00

Su
pp

lie
s

62
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
6.

67
%

su
pp

lie
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 F
irs

t A
id

 k
its

 &
 S

to
p 

th
e 

Bl
ee

d
00

00
-2

13
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

. E
qu

ip
m

en
t

85
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
6.

67
%

 
00

00
-2

13
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

13
0-

58
90

01
Fl

u 
Sh

ot
s

38
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
45

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
38

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
re

im
bu

rs
ab

le
 m

on
ey

 fr
om

 th
e 

in
su

ra
nc

e 
co

m
pa

ny
To

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

s
98

,2
21

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
5,

23
6

   
   

   
  

10
4,

23
6

   
   

   
   

11
1,

73
6

   
   

   
   

 
6,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
6.

18
%



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

Ac
tu

al
Cu

rr
en

t  
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

St
ud

en
t &

 S
ta

ff 
Su

pp
or

t
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f I

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
 

00
00

-2
20

0-
53

00
00

As
se

ss
m

en
t:C

ur
ric

. &
 T

ec
hn

.
71

,7
73

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
,5

71
   

   
   

   
 

80
,5

71
   

   
   

   
  

88
,9

18
   

   
   

   
   

8,
34

7
   

   
   

   
   

10
.3

6%
 

00
00

-2
21

0-
51

01
00

In
st

ru
ct

io
na

l G
ra

nt
s

6,
73

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
su

m
m

er
 w

or
k

00
00

-2
21

0-
51

50
00

M
en

to
rs

/C
er

tC
om

m
3,

57
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

42
.8

6%
In

cl
. C

om
m

on
 S

tu
dy

 L
ea

de
rs

00
00

-2
21

0-
52

00
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

St
ip

en
ds

20
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
88

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
42

.3
1%

00
00

-2
21

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- I
ns

tr.
 G

ra
nt

s
35

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

41
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

41
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
21

2-
53

30
00

C
ur

ric
ul

um
 W

or
k

1,
68

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

63
2

   
   

   
   

   
1,

89
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
06

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

42
8

   
   

   
   

   
87

.5
0%

$2
0 

pe
r  

st
ud

en
t 2

4-
25

00
00

-2
21

0-
53

30
02

R
ea

di
ng

 R
ec

ov
er

y 
C

on
t. 

H
rs

.
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-1

00
.0

0%
N

ot
 C

on
tin

ui
ng

00
00

-2
21

0-
53

30
03

Lo
ca

l W
or

ks
ho

ps
/S

pe
ak

er
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
8,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
40

0.
00

%
R

es
to

ra
tiv

e 
Pr

ac
tic

es
 T

ra
in

in
g

To
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

e.
 O

f I
ns

tru
ct

io
n

86
,3

22
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

,3
26

   
   

   
   

 
96

,5
90

   
   

   
   

  
11

4,
68

9
   

   
   

   
 

17
,3

63
   

   
   

   
  

17
.8

4%
Li

br
ar

y 
& 

Au
di

o 
Vi

su
al

 
00

00
-2

22
0-

53
20

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 L

ib
ra

ria
n

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
59

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
9.

26
%

 
To

ta
l L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 A
V

54
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
59

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
9.

26
%

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

00
00

-2
23

0-
51

01
00

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 In

te
gr

at
or

80
,3

70
   

   
   

   
   

 
83

,9
15

   
   

   
   

 
32

,3
33

   
   

   
   

  
61

,7
78

   
   

   
   

   
(2

2,
13

7)
   

   
   

   
-2

6.
38

%
10

0%
 T

im
e

00
00

-2
23

0-
51

06
00

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
43

,0
93

   
   

   
   

   
 

45
,4

06
   

   
   

   
 

42
,6

79
   

   
   

   
  

45
,4

96
   

   
   

   
   

90
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
20

%
60

%
 T

im
e

00
00

-2
23

0-
52

01
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- T
ec

hn
. I

nt
eg

ra
to

r
4,

34
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
96

8
   

   
   

   
   

1,
91

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

65
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,3

11
)

   
   

   
   

  
-2

6.
39

%
00

00
-2

23
0-

52
00

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- T

ec
hn

. C
oo

rd
.

3,
29

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

47
4

   
   

   
   

   
3,

26
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
48

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
17

%
00

00
-2

23
0-

52
11

00
BC

/B
S 

- T
ec

hn
. I

nt
eg

ra
to

r
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

23
,2

13
   

   
   

   
  

25
,5

34
   

   
   

   
   

20
,5

34
   

   
   

   
  

41
0.

68
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
00

00
-2

23
0-

52
16

00
BC

/B
S 

- T
ec

hn
. C

oo
rd

.
10

,7
96

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,8

76
   

   
   

   
 

11
,4

44
   

   
   

   
  

12
,5

88
   

   
   

   
   

71
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
00

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

96
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

64
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

66
.6

7%
00

00
-2

23
0-

54
32

00
C

on
tr.

 S
vc

s.
:E

qu
ip

. R
ep

ai
r

44
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

00
00

-2
23

0-
55

80
00

St
af

f T
ra

ve
l

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

23
0-

56
00

00
Su

pp
lie

s
5,

31
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-2

8.
57

%
co

pi
er

/p
rin

t s
up

pl
ie

s
00

00
-2

23
0-

56
50

00
C

om
pu

te
r S

of
tw

ar
e

2,
74

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
4,

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
ST

EA
M

 L
ic

en
se

s 
/ A

ud
ib

le
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
00

00
-2

23
0-

56
50

02
So

ftw
/S

ite
 L

ic
en

se
s 

- A
O

S9
1

16
,2

78
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
26

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
51

,7
84

   
   

   
   

   
25

,7
84

   
   

   
   

  
99

.1
7%

 
00

00
-2

23
0-

57
34

00
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

28
,5

29
   

   
   

   
   

 
32

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
32

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
32

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
St

af
f  

la
pt

op
s,

st
ud

en
t c

om
pu

te
r l

ea
se

s,
 T

ec
h 

D
ir 

C
om

pu
te

r
00

00
-2

23
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
66

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

00
%

To
ta

l T
ec

hn
ol

og
y

20
0,

46
8

   
   

   
   

  
22

7,
84

9
   

   
   

  
18

5,
19

8
   

   
   

   
25

0,
36

7
   

   
   

   
 

22
,5

18
   

   
   

   
  

 
Ar

tic
le

 7
9

St
ud

en
t &

 S
ta

ff 
Su

pp
or

t
65

0,
90

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

Sy
st

em
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
O

ffi
ce

 o
f S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t
00

00
-2

32
0-

53
41

00
As

se
ss

m
en

t: 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

10
0,

27
9

   
   

   
   

  
95

,5
12

   
   

   
   

 
95

,5
12

   
   

   
   

  
99

,0
81

   
   

   
   

   
3,

56
9

   
   

   
   

   
3.

74
%

D
ec

r. 
In

 %
 p

ai
d 

fr 
11

.9
2%

 to
 1

1.
79

%
To

ta
l O

ffi
ce

 o
f S

up
t.

10
0,

27
9

   
   

   
   

  
95

,5
12

   
   

   
   

 
95

,5
12

   
   

   
   

  
99

,0
81

   
   

   
   

   
3,

56
9

   
   

   
   

   
3.

74
%

Sy
st

em
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
Sc

ho
ol

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

00
00

-2
31

0-
51

50
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 S
ch

oo
l C

om
m

itt
ee

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

31
0-

52
00

00
So

c.
 S

ec
. /

 M
ed

ic
ar

e
16

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
31

0-
53

40
00

Pr
of

. S
vc

s.
: L

eg
al

 &
 A

ud
it

8,
39

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

31
0-

58
10

00
D

ue
s 

/ F
ee

s 
/ C

on
fe

re
nc

es
1,

51
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
90

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

90
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
.7

1%
To

ta
l S

ch
oo

l C
om

m
itt

ee
12

,2
78

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,7

68
   

   
   

   
 

19
,2

68
   

   
   

   
  

21
,2

68
   

   
   

   
   

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
41

%
Ar

tic
le

 8
0

Sy
st

em
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
12

0,
34

9
$ 

   
   

   
 



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

Ac
tu

al
Cu

rr
en

t  
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Sc
ho

ol
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Ex

pl
an

at
io

n
O

ffi
ce

 o
f P

rin
ci

pa
l

 
00

00
-2

41
0-

51
04

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 P

rin
ci

pa
l

10
9,

02
9

   
   

   
   

  
11

3,
39

0
   

   
   

  
10

8,
00

0
   

   
   

   
11

5,
02

0
   

   
   

   
 

1,
63

0
   

   
   

   
   

1.
44

%
00

00
-2

41
0-

51
18

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 S

ec
re

ta
rie

s
92

,6
59

   
   

   
   

   
 

87
,5

79
   

   
   

   
 

90
,8

96
   

   
   

   
  

95
,9

01
   

   
   

   
   

8,
32

2
   

   
   

   
   

9.
50

%
 

00
00

-2
41

0-
52

04
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- P
rin

ci
pa

l
5,

69
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
71

3
   

   
   

   
   

6,
39

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

80
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

96
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1.
43

%
00

00
-2

41
0-

52
08

00
Be

ne
fit

s 
- S

ec
re

ta
rie

s
11

,7
34

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,5

76
   

   
   

   
 

12
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

12
,2

97
   

   
   

   
   

72
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
23

%
So

c 
Se

c/
M

ed
 (7

.6
5%

) &
 P

LD
 fo

r s
om

e 
(9

.9
%

 fo
r 2

4-
25

)
00

00
-2

41
0-

52
14

00
BC

/B
S 

- P
rin

ci
pa

l
21

,8
99

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,0

89
   

   
   

   
 

14
,9

76
   

   
   

   
  

16
,4

74
   

   
   

   
   

(7
,6

15
)

   
   

   
   

  
-3

1.
61

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

00
00

-2
41

0-
52

14
01

BC
/B

C
 - 

Se
cr

et
ar

ie
s

43
,7

28
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

,1
78

   
   

   
   

 
46

,4
26

   
   

   
   

  
51

,0
69

   
   

   
   

   
2,

89
1

   
   

   
   

   
6.

00
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
3,

43
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
41

0-
54

44
50

C
op

ie
r L

ea
se

7,
75

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

75
3

   
   

   
   

   
7,

75
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
75

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

41
0-

55
40

00
Ad

ve
rti

si
ng

4,
71

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

41
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
1,

45
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-5

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

41
0-

56
00

00
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s 
/ P

os
ta

ge
3,

12
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
41

0-
57

30
00

R
ep

la
ce

/P
ur

ch
as

e 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

42
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
3.

33
%

00
00

-2
41

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s 
/ F

ee
s 

/ C
on

fe
re

nc
es

2,
57

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
1,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-3
3.

33
%

 M
PA

00
00

-2
41

0-
58

90
00

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s/
 B

an
k 

Sv
c.

Fe
es

5,
16

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
70

.0
0%

In
cl

. F
ie

ld
 T

rip
s

To
ta

l O
ffi

ce
 o

f P
rin

ci
pa

l
31

3,
38

5
   

   
   

   
  

32
1,

37
8

   
   

   
  

30
7,

34
5

   
   

   
   

32
9,

22
3

   
   

   
   

 
7,

84
5

   
   

   
   

   
2.

44
%

Ar
tic

le
 8

1
Sc

ho
ol

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

32
9,

22
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

B
us

es
St

ud
en

t T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n

 
00

00
-2

70
0-

51
18

00
Sa

la
rie

s:
 B

us
 D

riv
er

s
98

,7
61

   
   

   
   

   
 

84
,5

74
   

   
   

   
 

88
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

92
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

7,
42

6
   

   
   

   
   

8.
78

%
 

00
00

-2
70

0-
52

08
00

Be
ne

fit
s 

- B
us

 D
riv

er
s

9,
60

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,8
20

   
   

   
   

 
9,

63
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,5

96
   

   
   

   
   

77
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

6.
57

%
So

c 
Se

c/
M

ed
 (7

.6
5%

) &
 P

LD
 fo

r s
om

e 
(9

.9
%

 fo
r 2

4-
25

)
00

00
-2

70
0-

52
18

00
BC

/B
S:

 B
us

 D
riv

er
s

8,
68

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
17

,5
62

   
   

   
   

 
17

,9
98

   
   

   
   

  
53

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
35

,4
38

   
   

   
   

  
20

1.
79

%
ba

se
d 

on
 1

0%
 ra

te
 in

cr
 - 

82
%

 S
10

00
 S

ha
re

D
ed

uc
tib

le
 C

ov
er

ag
e

1,
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
66

.6
7%

00
00

-2
70

0-
53

40
00

Ph
ys

ic
al

s 
& 

D
ru

g 
Te

st
in

g
28

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
70

0-
54

30
00

C
on

tr.
 S

vc
s.

: B
us

 R
ep

ai
rs

3,
05

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

70
0-

55
20

00
In

su
ra

nc
e:

 B
us

5,
21

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

73
5

   
   

   
   

   
5,

51
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
34

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

.6
2%

00
0-

27
00

-5
58

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

70
0-

56
00

00
Su

pp
lie

s
28

,1
21

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

13
.6

4%
00

00
-2

70
0-

56
26

00
Fu

el
27

,1
97

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

29
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

2,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

7.
14

%
00

00
-2

70
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

. O
f E

qu
ip

m
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
31

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
 

00
00

-2
70

0-
57

36
00

Pu
rc

ha
se

 o
f S

ch
oo

l B
us

/R
es

er
ve

29
,9

99
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
Bu

s 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 - 

4 
yr

. L
ea

se
 L

as
t P

ay
m

en
t 3

/1
5/

20
25

00
00

-2
70

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s/
 F

ee
s/

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
70

0-
58

90
00

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-2

75
0-

55
14

00
Tr

an
sp

. P
ur

ch
as

ed
 fr

 P
riv

at
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

To
ta

l T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n
21

2,
17

0
   

   
   

   
  

20
8,

79
1

   
   

   
  

21
4,

15
4

   
   

   
   

25
9,

64
0

   
   

   
   

 
50

,8
49

   
   

   
   

  
24

.3
5%

Ar
tic

le
 8

2
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

& 
Bu

se
s

25
9,

64
0

$ 
   

   
   

 



M
O

UN
T 

DE
SE

RT
 S

CH
O

O
L 

DE
PA

RT
M

EN
T

22
-2

3
23

-2
4

23
-2

4
24

-2
5

Ac
tu

al
Cu

rr
en

t  
 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
Pr

op
os

ed
  

$
%

Ex
pe

nd
.

Bu
dg

et
Ex

pe
nd

.
Bu

dg
et

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

& 
M

ai
nt

. O
f P

la
nt

00
00

-2
60

0-
51

18
00

Sa
la

rie
s:

 C
us

to
di

an
s

17
2,

90
9

   
   

   
   

  
20

1,
05

6
   

   
   

  
20

1,
05

6
   

   
   

   
21

2,
92

7
   

   
   

   
 

11
,8

71
   

   
   

   
  

5.
90

%
 

00
00

-2
60

0-
52

08
00

So
c.

 S
ec

./ 
M

ed
ic

ar
e 

/ R
et

ire
.

24
,6

16
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,7
24

   
   

   
   

 
29

,2
70

   
   

   
   

  
29

,7
70

   
   

   
   

   
6,

04
6

   
   

   
   

   
25

.4
8%

So
c 

Se
c/

M
ed

 (7
.6

5%
) &

 P
LD

 fo
r s

om
e 

(9
.9

%
 fo

r 2
4-

25
)

00
00

-2
60

0-
52

18
00

Bl
ue

 C
ro

ss
 / 

Bl
ue

 S
hi

el
d

46
,9

61
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

,3
65

   
   

   
   

 
46

,6
07

   
   

   
   

  
51

,2
67

   
   

   
   

   
2,

90
2

   
   

   
   

   
6.

00
%

ba
se

d 
on

 1
0%

 ra
te

 in
cr

 - 
82

%
 S

10
00

 S
ha

re
D

ed
uc

tib
le

 C
ov

er
ag

e
2,

46
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

80
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
.0

0%
00

00
-2

60
0-

54
10

00
U

til
ity

 S
vc

s.
: S

ew
er

 / 
W

at
er

6,
78

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

05
2

   
   

   
   

   
9,

05
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

94
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.4

7%
00

00
-2

60
0-

55
20

00
In

su
ra

nc
e:

 B
ui

ld
in

g/
Eq

ui
p.

17
,1

54
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,8
70

   
   

   
   

 
19

,6
84

   
   

   
   

  
22

,6
36

   
   

   
   

   
3,

76
6

   
   

   
   

   
19

.9
6%

 
00

00
-2

60
0-

55
32

00
Te

le
ph

on
e

5,
66

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

60
0-

55
80

00
St

af
f T

ra
ve

l
27

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
56

00
00

Su
pp

lie
s

24
,9

05
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
26

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
27

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
00

00
-2

60
0-

56
22

00
El

ec
tri

ci
ty

55
,2

11
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
53

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
53

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
6.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
56

23
00

L.
P.

 G
as

1,
24

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
3,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
  

-1
1.

11
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
56

24
00

H
ea

tin
g 

O
il

51
,6

10
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

 
51

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
54

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
00

%
15

00
0 

g
00

00
-2

60
0-

57
30

00
R

ep
la

ce
/P

ur
ch

as
e 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

-4
4.

44
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
58

10
00

D
ue

s 
/ F

ee
s 

/ C
on

f. 
14

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
60

0-
58

90
05

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-2

60
0-

59
00

00
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
(O

pe
ra

tin
g)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

00
%

00
00

-2
62

0-
54

30
00

R
ep

ai
r &

 M
ai

nt
. :

 B
ui

ld
in

g
76

,1
20

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

13
.6

4%
In

cl
. H

VA
C

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
Sy

st
em

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 $

10
,4

00
00

00
-2

63
0-

54
30

00
R

ep
ai

r &
 M

ai
nt

.. 
: G

ro
un

ds
12

,4
32

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

(2
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-1

1.
76

%
Irr

ig
at

io
n 

M
ai

nt
. /

 L
aw

n 
& 

fie
ld

 M
ai

nt
.

00
00

-2
63

0-
54

30
00

R
ep

ai
r &

 M
ai

nt
.: 

Eq
ui

p.
 R

ep
ai

r
12

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

3,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

(3
,5

00
)

   
   

   
   

  
-7

0.
00

%
To

ta
l O

pe
r. 

&
 M

ai
nt

.
49

8,
61

9
   

   
   

   
  

52
7,

31
7

   
   

   
  

53
2,

71
9

   
   

   
   

55
2,

65
0

   
   

   
   

 
25

,3
33

   
   

   
   

  
4.

80
%

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce Ca
pi

ta
l O

ut
la

y
00

00
-2

69
0-

54
50

02
La

nd
 &

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

3,
56

5
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

43
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

61
4.

29
%

Pr
e-

K 
Pl

ay
gr

ou
nd

00
00

-2
69

0-
54

50
01

Bu
ild

in
gs

  
71

,6
60

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
6,

65
4

   
   

   
  

37
6,

65
4

   
   

   
   

30
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
(7

6,
65

4)
   

   
   

   
-2

0.
35

%
00

00
-2

69
0-

59
10

00
Bu

ild
in

gs
 (T

ra
ns

f t
o 

R
es

er
ve

)
22

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

2,
00

0)
   

   
   

   
-1

00
.0

0%
Es

t B
al

 6
/3

0/
24

  $
 1

54
,5

87
 //

 N
o 

Tr
an

sf
 to

 R
es

 2
02

4-
25

00
00

-2
69

0-
57

30
00

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
Pr

e-
K 

Pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
To

ta
l C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
y

97
,2

25
   

   
   

   
   

 
40

5,
65

4
   

   
   

  
40

5,
65

4
   

   
   

   
36

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
 

(4
5,

65
4)

   
   

   
   

-1
1.

25
%

Ar
tic

le
 8

3
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

91
2,

65
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 

De
bt

 S
er

vi
ce

 
00

00
-5

10
0-

58
32

00
In

te
re

st
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
00

00
-5

10
0-

58
31

00
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

28
5,

15
3

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
#D

IV
/0

!
11

/1
/2

02
2 

wa
s 

th
e 

la
st

 p
ay

m
en

t
To

ta
l D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
28

5,
15

3
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

#D
IV

/0
!

Ar
tic

le
 8

4
De

bt
 S

er
vi

ce
 &

 O
th

er
 C

om
m

itm
en

ts
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

Al
l O

th
er

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
 

Fo
od

 S
er

vi
ce

s
 

00
00

-3
10

0-
59

10
00

Fo
od

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Tr

an
sf

er
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

6.
67

%
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 6

/3
0/

22
 =

  $
 1

0K
To

ta
l F

oo
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

6.
67

%
Ar

tic
le

 8
5

Al
l O

th
er

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

s:
4,

71
6,

51
8

   
   

   
  

5,
20

4,
98

4
   

   
  

5,
04

4,
36

1
   

   
   

5,
52

1,
36

4
   

   
   

 
31

6,
38

0
   

   
   

   
6.

08
%

To
ta

l B
ud

ge
t I

nc
re

as
e

Ar
tic

le
 8

9
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

(S
um

m
ar

y 
Ar

tic
le

)
5,

52
1,

36
4

$ 
   

 



 

Date: February 29, 2024 

To: Selectboard 

From: Brian Henkel, Public Works Director 

Re: Somesville Sidewalk Construction Bids 

The Town solicited bids for the construction of sidewalks in Somesville on January 26, 2024, the design 

was authorized at the Annual Town Meeting in 2023. Our consultant contacted numerous contractors to 

request bids and the Town received only one bid for $743,690 from Gardner Concrete on February 22, 

2024. The lone bid was received from a contractor that was not contacted by our consultant and the bid 

price was higher than anticipated. The bid also contained an error in its mathematical calculations of 

$5,000. Due to this being a single bid, which is higher than anticipated, and that it contained errors, it is 

the recommendation of Public Works to reject this bid and rebid the project. 

It was initially anticipated that the construction costs for this project would be included in a warrant 

article to fund several sidewalk projects. With the need to rebid this project, the construction cost will 

need to be addressed later, possibly with a warrant at the Annual Town Meeting in 2025. The warrant 

article for the other sidewalk projects in Seal Harbor and Northeast Harbor are anticipated to move 

forward. 

While I am asking for the rejection of this bid, it has come to my attention that I failed to get 

authorization for the solicitation of this bid in the first place. That error was an oversight on my part, and 

I apologize to the Selectboard for that oversight. 

Cc: Durlin Lunt, Town Manager 

Mae Wyler, Finance Director 

Claire Wolfolk, Town Clerk 

Enclosures: Bid – Somesville Gardner Concrete 

 

Memorandum 





























 

Selectboard, 

Recommendation: 

I recommend that the Selectboard, in their capacity as trustees, authorize the Mount Desert Regional 
High School to grant the following stipend and scholarship: 

 Horace and Mary Reynolds Stipend in the amount of $350.00 ($50.00 more than last year) 

 Frank F. Stanley Trust Scholarship in the amount of $100.00 (no change from last year) 

Background 
At a special town meeting on September 16, 1970, the Town accepted a gift of $1,000 from Horace R. 
and Mary P. Reynolds to be held in trust used to fund the perpetual care of lots 83 and 84 in the Forest 
Hill Cemetery at Northeast Harbor and for flowers annually on Memorial Day, and to provide any 
unexpended income annually to be awarded to a member or members of the graduating class of Mount 
Desert Island Regional High School.  This gift was increased by $5,000 in 1973 and by $3,509.69 in 1976 
through bequests from the Reynold’s estate.   

At a special town meeting held on May 31, 1966, the Town voted to accept a gift of $3,000 to be held in 
trust from Frank F. Stanley.  The proceeds of this trust are to be used annually, $50 going to the 
maintenance of the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field in Northeast Harbor (We assume this is the field at the 
elementary school.); $100 for a scholarship to a member of the graduating class of the Mount Desert 
Island Regional High School; and the balance of the income for further improvement, upkeep and 
maintenance of the infield at the Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field. 

These funds have been placed in the Municipal Investment Trust Fund (Fund 500) and the investment 
has been placed with the Trust Services Department at Bar Harbor Bank and Trust. 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Mount Desert 
Mae Wyler, Finance Director 
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248 

Northeast Harbor, ME  04662-0248 
 
Telephone: 207-276-5531 ext. 115 Fax: 207-276-3232 

Web Address: www.mtdesert.org 
Email: financedirector@mtdesert.org 

 
 

http://www.mtdesert.org/
mailto:financedirector@mtdesert.org


Annual Calendar Year Analysis 

As of December 31, 2023, the relevant figures of the trusts are as follows: 

 Principal Balance Expendable (Income 
Balance) 

Trust Balance 

Horace R. and Mary P. 
Reynolds 

$11,188.12 $1,397.00 $12,585.12 

Frank F. Stanley $3,586.71 $2,941.67 $6,258.39 

 

Calendar Year 2023 Income: 

Horace R. and Mary P. Reynolds: $411.05 

Frank F. Stanley: $213.80 

 

For context, the relevant figures of the trusts as of December 31, 2022 are as shown below. These were 
the balances considered at the time of the authorization of last year’s scholarships. 

 Principal Balance Expendable (Income 
Balance) 

Trust Balance 

Horace R. and Mary P. 
Reynolds 

$11,049.64 $1,547.95 $12,597.60 

Frank F. Stanley $3,542.31 $3,023.50 $6,565.81 

 

Calendar Year 2022 Income: 

Horace R. and Mary P. Reynolds: $377.62 

Frank F. Stanley: $195.63 

 

Thank you, 

 

Finance Director 



Principal Income Total Change in Principal Income Total
Balance Balance Prin & Inc Account Value Income Fees expenditures Balance Balance Prin & Inc

Horace Reynolds 11,049.64 1,547.95 12,597.59 288.92 91.40 (23.02) (500.00) 11,338.56 1,116.33 12,454.89
Frank Stanley 3,542.32 3,023.50 6,565.82 92.62 47.23 (11.89) (295.63) 3,634.94 2,763.21 6,398.15

Horace Reynolds 11,338.56 1,116.33 12,454.89 (240.78) 103.00 (23.22) (62.00) 11,097.78 1,134.11 12,231.89
Frank Stanley 3,634.94 2,763.21 6,398.15 (77.19) 53.31 (12.01) 3,557.75 2,804.50 6,362.25

Horace Reynolds 11,097.78 1,134.11 12,231.89 (438.39) 112.46 (22.33) 10,659.39 1,224.24 11,883.63
Frank Stanley 3,557.75 2,804.50 6,362.25 (140.54) 59.33 (11.78) 3,417.21 2,852.05 6,269.27

Horace Reynolds 10,659.39 1,224.24 11,883.63 528.73 194.78 (22.02) 11,188.12 1,397.00 12,585.12
Frank Stanley 3,417.21 2,852.05 6,269.27 169.50 101.04 (11.42) 3,586.71 2,941.67 6,528.39

Horace Reynolds 11,049.64 1,547.95 12,597.59 138.48 501.64 (90.59) (562.00) 11,188.12 1,397.00 12,585.12
Frank Stanley 3,542.32 3,023.50 6,565.82 44.39 260.92 (47.11) (295.63) 3,586.71 2,941.67 6,528.39

Horace Reynolds
   Calendar Year Income 411.05 From To

   Less: Flowers (62.00) 0.00 50.00 50.00
   Less: Other expenses not 
assigned to income from other 
years 0.00 50.00 150.00 100.00

balance for scholarship 349.05 150.00 balance 63.80
Round 0.95
Recommended Scholarship 350.00 213.80 agrees to net income for calendar year

 

Beginning of Period End of Period

Q1 2023

Q2 2023

Q3 2023

Q4 2023

2023 
Calendar

Income

Up to a maximum of $100 to be awarded for scholarship

used or accumulated for the further improvement, 
upkeep and maintenance of the infield of the Frank F. 
Stanley Athletic Field in NEH

Care, maintenance and improvement of the infield of the 
Frank F. Stanley Athletic Field in NEH

Frank Stanley





TREASURER’S 
WARRANTS 

 





 Warrants for  BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 3/4/2024

Description # Date Amount

A.  Warrants to be Approved and Signed: 
Town Invoices

AP#2454 03/09/24 354,152.56              

354,152.56$           
B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)
         (Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization )

Town State Fees & P/R Benefits
AP#2451 02/21/24 1,079.00$                
AP#2453 02/29/24 2,858.92$                

Town Payroll
PR#2421 03/01/24 160,399.32$           

164,337.24$           

C.  Warrants to be Acknowledged:
School Invoices

School Payroll
PR#18 03/01/24 88,556.13$              

Town Voids

88,556.13$             

TOTAL WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING 607,045.93$        

T:\TREASURER\SECURE FILES\1- FY 2024 Working Files\Select Board Meeting\2024.03.04 Selectboard 
Meeting\Exceptions Documents\0- Exception Report.xlsx######





To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
7

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

2
0
0
 
G
o
v
e
r
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
d
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
,
7
7
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
6
7
.
1
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
,
2
0
2
.
8
3
 
 
 
2
6
.
0
%

2
0
1
 
M
u
n
i
c
i
p
a
l
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
2
,
0
6
4
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
,
8
0
5
.
7
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
4
,
2
5
8
.
2
7
 
 
 
6
8
.
9
%

2
0
2
 
T
o
w
n
 
C
l
e
r
k
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
9
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
1
5
0
,
2
6
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
,
5
6
4
.
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
,
6
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
6
1
.
6
%

2
0
3
 
E
l
e
c
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
7
.
2
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
1
9
2
.
7
3
 
 
 
2
8
.
3
%

2
0
4
 
P
l
a
n
n
i
n
g
 
B
o
a
r
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
,
2
6
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
6
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
,
9
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
6
,
3
1
4
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
6
2
5
.
0
2
 
 
 
9
8
.
2
%

2
0
5
 
F
i
n
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
3
1
4
,
8
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
8
,
7
9
3
.
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
6
,
0
5
7
.
1
3
 
 
 
6
6
.
3
%

2
0
6
 
A
s
s
e
s
s
i
n
g
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
2
1
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
8
,
3
7
4
.
5
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
8
3
7
.
4
2
 
 
 
6
8
.
7
%

2
0
7
 
C
o
d
e
 
E
n
f
o
r
c
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
2
,
4
8
4
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
8
,
0
5
1
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
4
3
2
.
3
5
 
 
 
6
5
.
0
%

2
0
8
 
U
n
a
l
l
o
c
a
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
,
8
8
0
.
4
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
,
1
1
9
.
6
0
 
 
 
3
0
.
0
%

2
0
9
 
H
u
m
a
n
 
R
e
s
o
u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
,
4
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
6
0
9
.
7
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
,
7
9
0
.
2
6
 
 
 
 
6
.
5
%

2
1
0
 
T
e
c
h
n
o
l
o
g
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
0
,
8
8
7
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
,
2
6
2
.
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
6
2
4
.
2
8
 
 
 
7
8
.
0
%

2
1
1
 
C
o
n
t
r
a
c
t
e
d
 
M
u
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
m
-
O
r
i
e
n
t
e
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
3
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

3
0
0
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
A
s
s
i
s
t
a
n
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
5
5
.
8
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
9
4
4
.
1
7
 
 
 
2
1
.
1
%

3
5
0
 
R
u
r
a
l
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
S
u
p
p
o
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
2
2
,
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
,
5
8
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
,
4
7
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
9
1
.
7
%

4
0
1
 
P
o
l
i
c
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
6
,
4
7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
6
 
 
 
1
,
1
6
7
,
1
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
9
,
7
3
4
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
0
7
,
3
7
8
.
6
4
 
 
 
3
9
.
4
%

4
0
3
 
F
i
r
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
6
7
,
3
3
4
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
6
,
6
5
9
.
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
0
,
6
7
4
.
2
1
 
 
 
6
6
.
5
%

4
0
4
 
H
y
d
r
a
n
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
3
,
5
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
5
,
1
2
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
8
,
3
7
5
.
0
0
 
 
 
7
5
.
0
%

4
0
5
 
S
h
e
l
l
f
i
s
h
 
C
o
n
s
e
r
v
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
4
0
3
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
6
 
S
t
r
e
e
t
 
L
i
g
h
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
,
2
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
7
6
5
.
7
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
4
8
4
.
2
8
 
 
 
6
0
.
1
%

4
0
7
 
A
n
i
m
a
l
 
C
o
n
t
r
o
l
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
8
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

4
0
8
 
C
o
m
u
n
i
c
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
5
6
,
2
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
4
,
2
1
1
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
,
0
8
3
.
1
1
 
 
 
6
2
.
3
%

4
0
9
 
E
m
e
r
g
e
n
c
y
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
0
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
%

5
0
1
 
H
i
g
h
w
a
y
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
0
0
4
,
0
6
8
 
 
 
1
,
4
4
3
,
0
8
7
.
6
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
0
,
9
8
0
.
3
5
 
 
 
7
2
.
0
%

5
0
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
w
a
t
e
r
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
o
n
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
5
,
1
5
7
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
6
,
0
6
6
.
1
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
,
0
9
0
.
8
7
 
 
 
6
3
.
9
%

5
0
6
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
W
a
t
e
r
 
T
r
e
a
t
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
4
,
6
0
8
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
7
,
2
8
7
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
,
3
2
0
.
8
5
 
 
 
5
7
.
5
%

5
1
5
 
W
a
s
t
e
 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
3
,
6
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
5
,
4
1
3
.
9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
8
,
2
0
5
.
0
5
 
 
 
6
3
.
9
%

5
2
0
 
B
u
i
l
d
i
n
g
s
 
&
 
G
r
o
u
n
d
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
8
,
5
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
1
9
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
0
,
0
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
5
,
2
8
7
.
9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
4
,
7
4
1
.
2
3
 
 
 
6
6
.
2
%

5
2
5
 
P
a
r
k
s
 
&
 
C
e
m
e
t
e
r
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
,
2
0
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
,
2
6
4
.
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
,
9
3
7
.
1
1
 
 
 
7
6
.
8
%

5
3
0
 
E
n
v
i
r
o
n
m
e
n
t
a
l
 
S
u
s
t
a
i
n
a
b
i
l
i
t
y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
,
3
0
0
.
5
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
4
4
9
.
4
5
 
 
 
7
0
.
8
%

6
0
5
 
R
e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
9
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
7
6
4
.
7
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
1
3
5
.
2
9
 
 
 
8
0
.
8
%

7
0
1
 
C
o
m
m
u
n
i
t
y
 
D
e
v
e
l
o
p
m
e
n
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
,
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
4
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
5
0
.
0
0
 
 
 
1
4
.
5
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
2
,
2
0
3
,
9
8
9
 
 
 
2
,
0
2
7
,
2
5
2
.
0
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
6
,
7
3
6
.
9
6
 
 
 
9
2
.
0
%

8
5
1
 
3
r
d
 
P
a
r
t
y
 
R
e
q
u
e
s
t
 
A
g
e
n
c
i
e
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
,
4
3
7
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
 
 
 
1
,
0
8
4
,
3
1
4
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
1
0
0
.
0
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
,
1
3
0
,
7
3
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
5
3
 
 
1
4
,
1
7
8
,
8
8
4
 
 
1
0
,
1
9
5
,
1
0
0
.
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
3
,
9
8
3
,
7
8
3
.
4
4
 
 
 
7
1
.
9
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
7

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

A
C
C
O
U
N
T
S
 
F
O
R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

6
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

1
0
1
 
N
o
r
t
h
e
a
s
t
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
6
6
4
,
3
2
1
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
3
,
0
8
3
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
9
1
,
2
3
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
7
1
.
2
%

1
0
2
 
S
e
a
l
 
H
a
r
b
o
r
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
,
2
3
4
.
2
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
,
5
6
5
.
7
1
 
 
 
4
0
.
9
%

1
0
3
 
B
a
r
t
l
e
t
t
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
8
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
9
6
.
9
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
2
0
3
.
0
2
 
 
 
1
2
.
4
%

1
0
4
 
S
o
m
e
s
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
2
.
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
7
.
5
0
 
 
 
3
5
.
0
%

8
0
1
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
O
b
l
i
g
a
t
i
o
n
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
3
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
,
0
1
0
.
0
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
1
.
9
4
 
 
 
9
9
.
9
%

9
9
1
 
O
p
e
r
a
t
i
n
g
 
T
r
a
n
s
f
e
r
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
7
,
3
7
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
3
,
1
0
8
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
4
,
2
6
9
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
5
.
9
%

 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
 
 
 
 
 
8
5
2
,
0
8
0
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
4
,
2
9
5
.
3
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
7
,
7
8
4
.
6
7
 
 
 
6
7
.
4
%



To
w

n 
of

 M
ou

nt
 D

es
er

t

YE
A

R
-T

O
-D

A
TE

 B
U

D
G

ET
 R

EP
O

R
T

R
e
p
o
r
t
 
g
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
:
 
0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
7

U
s
e
r
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u

P
r
o
g
r
a
m
 
I
D
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
g
l
y
t
d
b
u
d

P
a
g
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
F
O
R
 
2
0
2
4
 
1
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
O
R
I
G
I
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
T
R
A
N
F
R
S
/
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
V
I
S
E
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
V
A
I
L
A
B
L
E
 
 
 
 
P
C
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
P
R
O
P
 
 
 
 
 
A
D
J
S
T
M
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
Y
T
D
 
E
X
P
E
N
D
E
D
 
 
 
E
N
C
U
M
B
R
A
N
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
U
D
G
E
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
E
D

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
1
4
,
9
8
2
,
8
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
,
1
5
3
 
 
1
5
,
0
3
0
,
9
6
4
 
 
1
0
,
7
6
9
,
3
9
5
.
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
0
0
 
 
 
4
,
2
6
1
,
5
6
8
.
1
1
 
 
 
7
1
.
6
%

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
54

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 9
, 2

02
4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
02

64
th

ro
ug

h
32

02
77

29
5,

71
3.

68
$ 

   
   

Ch
ec

k 
pa

ym
en

ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

32
22

th
ro

ug
h

32
33

58
,4

38
.8

8
$ 

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
35

4,
15

2.
56

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

W
en

dy
 H

 L
itt

le
fie

ld
, V

ic
e 

Ch
ai

rm
an

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
1

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
3
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
0
9
7
 
T
O
W
N
 
O
F
 
B
A
R
 
H
A
R
B
O
R
 
F
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
4
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
6
 
B
R
O
W
N
S
 
C
O
M
M
U
N
I
C
A
T
I
O
N
S
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
8
.
0
4

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
5
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
2
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
1
.
7
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
5
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
4
0
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
9
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
7
.
0
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
4
8
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
7
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
4
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
5
.
5
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
6
0
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
1
.
0
2

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
E
N
E
R
G
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
3
9
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
1
1
.
9
2

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
6
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
8
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
7
4
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
2
.
7
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
L
L
 
M
A
R
K
E
T
I
N
G
 
L
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
8
8
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
9
3
5
.
6
1

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
7
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
5
 
E
M
R
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
0
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
0
.
7
5



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
2

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
8
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
2
9
1
 
G
 
F
 
J
O
H
N
S
T
O
N
 
&
 
A
S
S
O
C
I
A
T
E
S
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
9
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
6
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
8
7
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
3
0
.
8
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
2
5
3
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
H
A
L
E
Y
 
W
A
R
D
,
 
I
N
C
.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
7
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
2
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
,
5
4
1
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
0
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
5
9
2
 
H
A
M
M
O
N
D
 
L
U
M
B
E
R
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
1
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
0
5
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
S
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
A
C
C
T
 
#
9
4
1
9
5
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
0
3
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
3
0
3
.
2
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
2
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
2
6
9
3
 
N
O
 
F
R
I
L
L
S
 
O
I
L
 
C
O
M
P
A
N
Y
 
A
C
C
T
 
#
3
0
5
0
7
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
7
0
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
3
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
E
F
T
 
 
 
 
1
8
4
2
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
7
.
6
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
7
.
7
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
7
3
.
7
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
0
1
.
8
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
1
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
4
.
5
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
7
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
6
0
0
.
2
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
7
.
8
9



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
3

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
2
5
.
2
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V
E
R
S
A
N
T
 
P
O
W
E
R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
2
3
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
5
1
9
.
4
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
4
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
9
3
3
 
A
T
 
M
A
I
N
E
,
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
.
8
8

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
5
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
3
5
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
8
3
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
1
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
0
1
.
3
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
1
1
.
7
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
3
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
8
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
4
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
0
7
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
7
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
9
.
9
0



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
4

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
,
6
6
8
.
5
2

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
6
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
9
7
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
.
2
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
1
.
4
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
9
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
.
9
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
.
4
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
3
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
.
4
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
8
.
9
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
4
.
4
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
9
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
.
5
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
4
.
9
4

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
5
.
9
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
A
R
D
M
E
M
B
E
R
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
.
6
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
9
6
.
8
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
7
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
1
9
7
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
H
A
I
N
S
A
W
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
3
5
.
7
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E
L
L
S
W
O
R
T
H
 
C
H
A
I
N
S
A
W
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
7
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
2
.
2
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
7
.
9
6



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
5

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
8
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
6
6
0
 
G
I
L
M
A
N
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
.
2
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
8
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
.
2
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
9
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
7
1
0
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
F
I
R
E
 
S
E
R
V
I
C
E
 
I
N
S
T
I
T
U
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
6
9
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
0
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
4
1
3
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
7
4
.
1
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
5
2
.
9
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
 
C
 
M
 
E
L
E
C
T
R
I
C
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8
,
2
3
5
.
0
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
0
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
5
6
2
.
1
1

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
1
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
9
8
6
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
8
8
3
.
0
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
2
9
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
6
4
,
4
0
2
.
3
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M
A
I
N
E
 
M
U
N
I
C
I
P
A
L
 
B
O
N
D
 
B
A
N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
0
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
1
4
.
2
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
1
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
7
0
,
3
2
9
.
2
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
2
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
6
0
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
8
.
3
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
5
5
.
9
3

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
3
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
.
9
9

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
3
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
A
S
T
A
L
 
A
U
T
O
 
P
A
R
T
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
1
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
2
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
3
6
.
9
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
3
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
1
8
0
5
 
T
H
E
 
A
R
T
I
N
A
 
G
R
O
U
P
,
 
I
N
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
1
/
0
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
.
0
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
3
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
1
.
0
6



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
:
 
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 

C
H
E
C
K
 
N
O
 
 
C
H
K
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
T
Y
P
E
 
V
E
N
D
O
R
 
N
A
M
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N
V
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
P
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
W
A
R
R
A
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
E
T

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
4
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
3
7
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
0
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
5
6
0
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
2
.
9
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
N
I
F
I
R
S
T
 
C
O
R
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
2
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7
5
.
5
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
4
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
,
9
9
7
.
0
4

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
5
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
 
7
4
2
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
3
.
1
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U
S
A
 
B
L
U
E
B
O
O
K
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
2
.
2
7

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
5
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
2
5
.
4
3

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
6
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
1
1
4
 
C
E
N
T
R
A
L
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
C
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
1
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
6
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
6
2
.
5
0

 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
7
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
P
R
T
D
 
 
 
2
4
1
1
 
A
L
L
I
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
,
1
7
3
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
L
L
I
E
D
 
E
Q
U
I
P
M
E
N
T
 
L
L
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0
2
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
9
5
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
H
E
C
K
 
 
 
 
3
2
0
2
7
7
 
T
O
T
A
L
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
,
1
6
8
.
0
0

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N
U
M
B
E
R
 
O
F
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
2
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
C
A
S
H
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
M
O
U
N
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
P
R
I
N
T
E
D
 
C
H
E
C
K
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
9
5
,
7
1
3
.
6
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
E
F
T
'
S
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
8
,
4
3
8
.
8
8

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
*
 
G
R
A
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
*
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
7

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

C
L
E
R
K
:
 
6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L

S
R
C
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
 
O
B
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
D
E
S
C
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
1
 
 
R
E
F
 
2
 
 
 
 
 
 
R
E
F
 
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L
I
N
E
 
D
E
S
C

2
0
2
4
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
,
3
8
9
.
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
L
 
L
E
D
G
E
R
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A
P
P
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
A
P
2
4
5
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S
Y
S
T
E
M
 
G
E
N
E
R
A
T
E
D
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
7
6
3
.
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
7
6
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
2
0
2
4
/
0
9
/
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
8
,
9
1
6
.
0
7
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
9
8
,
9
1
6
.
0
7



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
8

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y
E
A
R
 
P
E
R
 
 
 
 
J
N
L
 
 
E
F
F
 
D
A
T
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
E
B
I
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
R
E
D
I
T

 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
C
C
O
U
N
T
 
D
E
S
C
R
I
P
T
I
O
N

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
1
0
1
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
C
k
g
-
B
H
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
8
0
6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
0
9
,
3
8
9
.
0
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
3
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
F
-
C
A
P
 
I
M
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
1
0
0
-
3
5
0
6
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
-
M
A
R
I
N
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
4
,
1
5
2
.
5
6

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2
0
2
4
 
 
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6
 
 
0
3
/
0
9
/
2
0
2
4

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
2
0
0
0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
c
c
o
u
n
t
s
 
P
a
y
a
b
l
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
6
0
0
-
3
5
0
1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
T
 
G
e
n
 
f
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
F
U
N
D
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6



0
2
/
2
9
/
2
0
2
4
 
1
6
:
4
0
 
 
 
 
|
T
o
w
n
 
o
f
 
M
o
u
n
t
 
D
e
s
e
r
t
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
P
 
 
 
 
 
 
9

6
9
0
5
l
y
o
u
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
A
/
P
 
C
A
S
H
 
D
I
S
B
U
R
S
E
M
E
N
T
S
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
|
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
J
O
U
R
N
A
L
 
E
N
T
R
I
E
S
 
T
O
 
B
E
 
C
R
E
A
T
E
D

F
U
N
D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
T
O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
D
U
E
 
F
R

1
0
0
 
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
l
 
F
u
n
d
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
7
6
3
.
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3
0
0
 
 
C
a
p
i
t
a
l
 
P
r
o
j
e
c
t
s
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3
5
,
3
5
2
.
1
5

6
0
0
 
 
M
a
r
i
n
a
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9
,
4
1
1
.
3
6

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
 
 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T
O
T
A
L
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
7
6
3
.
5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4
4
,
7
6
3
.
5
1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
*
*
 
E
N
D
 
O
F
 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 
-
 
G
e
n
e
r
a
t
e
d
 
b
y
 
L
i
s
a
 
Y
o
u
n
g
 
*
*
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24
51

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

1,
 2

02
4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
01

99
th

ro
ug

h
32

01
99

1,
07

9.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

N
/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
1,

07
9.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2451 State Fees/Payroll Benefits
Date: Wednesday, February 21, 2024 3:59:04 PM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved 

On Wed, Feb 21, 2024 at 1:42 PM Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:

 

 

 

Greetings,

 Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #2451 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount
of $1,079.00 for your approval.                      

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or
rejecting. 

I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the
one required email approval.

Thank you!

Lisa Young,

Deputy Treasurer, Tax Collector

Town of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in matters
concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public records which may be
inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.

 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or privileged. This email
is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are not the intended recipient or an
authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination or copying of this
email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error,
please immediately notify the sender by return email and delete this email from your system.

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org


 

 

 



24
53

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

9,
 2

02
4

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

32
02

63
th

ro
ug

h
32

02
63

1,
51

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
Ch

ec
k 

pa
ym

en
ts

CH
EC

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
El

ec
tr

on
ic

 p
ay

m
en

ts

 E
FT

 N
U

M
BE

R:
  

32
21

th
ro

ug
h

32
21

1,
34

2.
92

$ 
   

   
   

  
AC

H 
Pa

ym
en

ts

EF
T 

or
 C

K 
N

U
M

BE
R:

N
/A

an
d

N
/A

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Vo

id
ed

 C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
2,

85
8.

92
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
BM

V,
 S

TA
TE

 &
 P

R 
AC

CO
U

N
TS

 P
AY

AB
LE

 W
AR

RA
N

T

W
AR

RA
N

T 
AP

#

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s



24
21

CH
EC

K 
DA

TE
:  

 
M

ar
ch

 1
, 2

02
4

AD
VI

CE
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:
16

44
04

th
ro

ug
h

16
45

5

 C
HE

CK
 N

U
M

BE
RS

:  
66

43
4

th
ro

ug
h

66
44

7

TO
TA

L 
DI

SB
U

RS
EM

EN
TS

:
16

0,
39

9.
32

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

 

Se
le

ct
m

en
:

Jo
hn

 B
 M

ac
au

le
y,

 C
ha

irm
an

M
ar

th
a 

T 
Du

dm
an

Ja
m

es
 F

 M
oo

er
s

Ge
of

fr
ey

 V
 W

oo
d,

 S
ec

re
ta

ry

na
m

ed
 in

 th
is 

sc
he

du
le

.

TO
W

N
 O

F 
M

O
U

N
T 

DE
SE

RT
PA

YR
O

LL
 W

AR
RA

N
T

Th
is 

is 
to

 c
er

tif
y 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

du
e 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 li
st

ed
 a

bo
ve

th
e 

su
m

 se
t a

ga
in

st
 e

ac
h 

na
m

e 
an

d 
yo

u 
ar

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 to

 p
ay

 u
nt

o 
th

e 
pa

rt
ie

s

W
AR

RA
N

T 
PR

# 



From: Rick Mooers
To: Lisa Young
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#2453 & PR#2421 Approval Request
Date: Thursday, February 29, 2024 8:59:55 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Approved 
Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 29, 2024, at 8:47 AM, Lisa Young <financeclerk@mtdesert.org> wrote:


Greetings,
 
Attached are the following warrants for approval:
                                    Accounts Payable                #2453     total of          $2,858.92
                                    Payroll                                   #2421     total of          $160,399.32
 
Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for these warrants by approving
or rejecting.
 
 
I will “will reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we
have the one required email approval.
Thank you!
 
Lisa Young,
Finance Clerk, Tax Collector
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T)   (207) 276-3232 (F)                                                                                                
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~FOIA NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") law, all e-mail and e-mail attachments received or prepared for use in
matters concerning Town business or containing information relating to Town business are likely to be regarded as public
records which may be inspected by any person upon request, unless otherwise made confidential by law.
 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~PRIVACY NOTICE~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
 The information in this email is an official Town of Mount Desert communication and is private and/or
privileged. This email is intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organization named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representative of the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any review, dissemination or copying of this email and its attachments, if any, or the information contained
herein is prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately notify the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
<4- AP2453.pdf>
<11- PR2421.pdf>

mailto:rickmooers@gmail.com
mailto:financeclerk@mtdesert.org




18

lyoung
Highlight


	Selectboard Meeting Agenda 2024- 03-04
	Regular Meeting
	Monday, March 4, 2024

	appointments
	APPOINTMENTS ETC Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -3
	Blank Page

	02-26-24-Final for the BOS-JM
	Dalton Anne PB 2024

	Consent
	CONSENT AGENDA Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -4
	Blank Page

	Warrant Cmte. minutes 2-06-24
	Warrant Committee minutes 2-13-2024 

	Unfinished
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -5
	Blank Page

	3rd Party Request LIST 2024 BOS MEETING
	Contract with EMR 2024.02.29

	New
	NEW BUSINESS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -6
	Blank Page

	MDES 2024-25 DRAFT Budget for SC
	24-25 Revised Subsidy

	Somesville Sidewalk Bids 2024.02.29
	Scholarship Funds memo 03.04.2024
	Calendar year 2023 Stanley and Reynolds analysis.pdf
	Sheet1



	Warrant
	TREASURERS WARRANTS Packet Scanned Packet Divider Pages -7
	Blank Page

	Treasurer's Warrant
	0- Exception Report.pdf
	######

	0b- FY24 Budget Report.pdf
	1- AP2454 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP Cover Sheet

	2- GL Distribution Journal.pdf
	3- AP2451 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	4- Re_ Warrant AP#2451 State Fees_Payroll Benefits.pdf
	5- AP2453 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	AP 921 WARRANT Cover Sheet

	6- PR2421 WARRANT WKSHTS.pdf
	pr cover  

	7- Re_ Warrant AP#2453 & PR#2421 Approval Request.pdf
	8- MDES PR18 BOS & Upload.pdf
	Blank Page


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



